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Financial Highlights

Annual results for the year ended 31 March 2010

Ekizm OF3AIHEEHEE
Turnover

e Profit before income tax

* Asaft 31 March 2010
Shareholders’ fund

e Earnings per share

Turnover (HK$'000)

Profit attributable to shareholders
(HK$'000)

Basic earnings per share (HK cents)

Proposed final dividend per share
(HK cents)

Net asset value (HK$'000)

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Fair value change on derivative
financial instruments

Valuation deficit on building

Finance costs

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Exchange gain on franslation of financial

statements of foreign operations
Surplus on revaluation of properties
held for own use
Tax effect relating to components of
other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Basic earnings per share
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446,910 361,102
41,047 25,006
17.8 10.8
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235,202 198,731
2010 2009
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FHT Tt
446,910 361,102
(279,824) (221,973)
167,086 139,129
807 2,330
(80,755) (75,983)
(36,344) (32,368)
(322) (676)
(115) (112)
(653) (1,758)
49,704 30,562
(8,657) (5,556)
41,047 25,006
326 18

6,400 3,387
(907) (219)
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Chairman’s Statement
TERLEE

Dear Shareholders

We are pleased to present the annual report for the year
ended 31 March 2010. With your support and the efforts
of my fellow colleagues, we have achieved new records
in sales and operating profit, since our listing in April 2000,
to mark the 10th Anniversary of our becoming a publicly
listed group. Consolidating our years of experience
in China, we have formally taken part in prominent
supply and installation projects in Shanghai, one of the
most promising cities in China. We are acting now and
embarking on this “Bon Voyage" to China.

We have broken new grounds where for the first time, the
business generated in the mainland represents 17% of
our Group turnover. We look forward to a healthy growth
in our China operations, as the neon lights that shine on
Shanghai Expo and continue to brighten up the skyline of
Shanghai in night, this division shall continue to become a
significant contributor to our future success. Our business
voyage to China shall continue not only in Pearl River and
Yangtze delta but also sail upstream to other cities, such as
Dalian, Tianjin and Chongaging, for business opportunities.

In the past few months, we have noted that the fiscal
control among the European Union countries result in the
revaluation of Euro which couples with the appreciation
in Renminbi is going to enhance our profit margin as a
significant portion of our imports are from these countries.
We are pleased to note that China economy continues
its tfrack of recovery after the worldwide recession while
cautiously monitoring its effects on Hong Kong in particular
the luxurious housing market.

At home, despite the femporary uncertainties in economic
well beings, during this period of 10 years, the Group
has steered itself towards the world premier division in
supplying branded products, this year we steam into the
furniture and leather goods products as the exclusive
agent for world renowned brands, B&B Italia and Poltrona
Frau, making ourselves a supplier for luxurious living from
bathroom, kitchen into the living rooms. We have indeed
observed that better city brings in better life.

"'x I
s ™

TSE Sun Fat, Henry #i#ii&

Chairman *fE

11 June 2010 —E-EEXAT—H
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The following discussion provides information and
contribution to revenue, operating profit, profit after tax,
financial condition, liquidity and capital expenditure of
the Group.

Results of Operations

We announce that an operating profit of HK$49.7 million
(2009: HK$30.6 million), an increase of 62%, while profit
after tax amounts to HK$41.0 million (2009: HK$25.0 million),
an increase of 64% with the Group turnover amounts to
HK$446.9 million (2009: HK$361.1 million) an increase of 24%
from last year.

2010 marks the 10th Anniversary of E. Bon becoming a
publicly listed group in Hong Kong. This year we have
broken new records in sales and shareholders’ funds. We
are pleased to report that we have made a significant
step in our operations in China, diffusing the negative
impacts as a result of financial uncertainties in different
parts of the world. Our gross margin maintains at 37%
(2009: 39%) reflecting the higher cost of goods sold in
China when incorporating duties and other dues for
importing our products into Mainland. The administrative
expenses of HK$36.3 million (2009: HK$32.4 million), despite
a significant growth in sales and profitability demonstrates
the effectiveness in our cost control; while the increase of
6% in selling and distribution expenses to HK$80.8 million
(2009: HK$76.0 million) reflects the expenses in gaining
dealerships and agency for prestige products.

Wholesales/Retails

As menfioned in the interim report, despite the slowing
down of building projects in Hong Kong and the activities
in the secondary housing market, our retail operations
remain steady this year. With the benefit of the favourable
exchange rates, we expect the margin will improve in the
forthcoming year. Meanwhile, the current market in Hong
Kong allows us to allocate further resources and focus on
our China operations that has yielded a positive result this
year. The sales in kitchen fittings in Hong Kong and the
sales made in the Commercial and Hotel complex Lujiazui,
Shanghai have made a significant contribution fo our
profitability. The China sales has now accounted for 17% of
our sales (2009: 1%) and we are monitoring our operation
results closely and opfimistically.

Financial Resources and Liquidity

The Group confinues to expand its business lines
and volume while maintaining a prudent financial
management policy, the current ratio and quick ratio are
2.88 (2009: 3.18) and 1.94 (2009: 2.03) respectively, while
the cash and bank balances amounted to HK$51.9 million
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as at 31 March 2010 (2009: HK$39.1 million). The Group
gearing ratio (the ratio of total liabilities to the sum of total
liabilities and equity) increased to 32% as at 31 March
2010 (2009: 29%). The interest-bearing borrowings of the
Group amounted to HK$60.9 million (2009: HK$44.9 million)
including trade finance such as trust receipt loans for
imports.

The Group has adopted a prudent hedging policy
against foreign exchange risk on imported products. The
borrowing and cash balances are primarily denominated
in Hong Kong Dollars, the foreign exchange risk in this
aspect is insignificant.

People

As at 31 March 2010, our loyal workforce which is a major
ingredient to our successful operation increased to 173
(2009: 147).

Future Prospects

In Hong Kong, we are gradually establishing ourselves as a
premier league player in the supply of branded products
in furniture and leather goods. These products aim to
serve individuals and families, who are less affected by the
financial uncertainties, via our newest division. We plan to
open our specialty showroom for B&B Italia and Poltrona
Frau for which we are the exclusive agent.

The success in our China operations is based on years
of hard work in laying the foundation and gaining
confidence with our customers, this allows us to compete
with local suppliers in participating projects in Shanghai,
one of the most promising cities in China. Building on
our experience in supplying the luxurious housing
market in Hong Kong, we are eagerly looking
forward to taking part in similar residential and
theme park construction projects on the outskirts
of Shanghai. We expect the effects of Shanghai
Expo continue fo radiate to other parts of the
Country, and we shall increase our presence there.

As part of the group expansion in our operatfions in
China, this year we acquired a subsidiary, Shanghai
Techpro Interior Decoration Co. Ltd., which undertakes
interior decoration and project management.
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Group Structure
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E. Bon (BVI)
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100%
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Company
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Limited
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Regqister office

Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman
KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Head office and
principal place of
business

16th-18th Floors,
First Commercial
Building

33 Leighton Road,
Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong

Company secretary

IP Fu Wa, Benthony
ACA, CPA

Auditors

Grant Thornton
Certified Public
Accountants

6th Floor, Nexxus
Building

41 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong

Authorised
representatives

TSE Hon Kit, Kevin
IP Fu Wa, Benthony
ACA, CPA

Hong Kong branch
share registrar and
transfer office

Tricor Abacus Limited
26th Floor, Tesbury
Centre

28 Queen's Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

AR ERE
Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman
KYT-1111
Cayman Islands
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Cayman Islands
principal share
registrar and
transfer office

Butterfield Fulcrum
Group (Cayman) Limited
Butterfield House

68 Fort Street

P.O. Box 705

Grand Cayman
KY1-1107

Cayman Islands

Legal advisers on
Cayman Islands law

Conyers Dill &
Pearman, Cayman
Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman
KYT-1111

Cayman Islands

Legal advisers on
Hong Kong law

Pang, Wan & Choi,
Solicitors

7th Floor, Chinachem
Tower

34-37 Connaught
Road Central,

Hong Kong

Principal bankers

The Hong Kong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited
Nanyang Commercial Bank
Limited

Wing Lung Bank Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China (Asia) Limited

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong] Limited

Corporate Information
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The directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2010.

Principal activities and geographical analysis of
operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
importing and sale of architectural builders hardware,
bathroom, kitchen collections and furniture in Hong Kong.

Details of the analysis of the Group's turnover and
confribution to operating profit for the year by principal
activity and market is set out in note 6 to the financial
statements.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 38.

Final dividend and bonus shares

The Board has resolved to recommend, at the forthcoming
annual general meeting to be held on 9 September 2010,
a Final Dividend of HK3.0 cents (2009: HK2.5 cenfts) per
ordinary share for the year ended 31 March 2010 and
a bonus share issued on the basis of three bonus shares
at par for every ten shares of the Company held fo
shareholders (2009 bonus shares: nil).

The proposed Bonus Shares will be issued and credited
as fully paid and will rank pari passu with the then issued
shares in all aspects with effect from the date of issue
except that they are not entitled to proposed Final
Dividend for the year ended 31 March 2010. Such Final
Dividend and Bonus Shares are not reflected as dividend
payables or share capital of the Group's financial
statements for the year.

If approved by the members, the Bonus Shares will be
issued on or before 27 September 2010. Listing and
Dealing Application will be made to the Listing Committee
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) for the listing of and permission to deal in,
the Bonus Shares. It is expected that the dealing of Bonus
Shares on the Stock Exchange will commence on 30
September 2010. The Final Dividend will be paid on 8

October 2010. /_\

Directors’ Report
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Final dividend and bonus shares (cont’d)

Both Final Dividend and Bonus Shares will be distributed to
members whose names appear on the principal or branch
register of members of the Company in the Cayman Islands
or Hong Kong respectively (collectively the “Register of
Members”) as at the close of business on 9 September
2010.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
and of the Company during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and note 26
to the financial statements respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in
note 15 to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
note 25 to the financial statements.

Distributable reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March
2010 amounted to HK$72,591,000. Under Section 34 of
the Companies Law (2000 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium is available for distribution to
shareholders, provided that no distribution shall be paid to
shareholders out of the Company’s share premium unless
the Company shall be able to pay ifs debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

Five year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is sef out on
page 98.

Directors’ Report
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Purchase, sale or redemption of shares

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during
the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during
the year.

Directors
The directors during the year were:

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony

Mr. LAU Shiu Sun

Mr. YICK Kai Chung

Mr. FUNG Cheuk Hang, Jackie
Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin

Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.P. #
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic #
Mr. WAN Sze Chung #

# Independent non-executive directors who entered into
contracts with the Company for an initial fixed term
of one year and thereafter shall continue for further
successive periods of one year, provided that the
Company may terminate the contracts at the end of
each one year period by giving the other party at least
one month’s nofice in writing thereof.

Mr. TSE Sun Faf, Henry, Mr. FUNG Cheuk Hang, Jackie and
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic shall retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting in accordance with Articles 86(3)
and 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ service contracts

Each of Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry and Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony
has entered into a service contract with the Company for
a term of three years commencing on 1 March 2000 and
continuing thereafter unless terminated by either party
with atf least three months advance nofice in writing.
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Directors’ service confracts (cont'd)

Mr. LAU Shiu Sun has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years commencing
on 10 December 2001 and continuing thereafter unless
terminated by either party with at least three months
advance notice in writing.

Each of Mr. FUNG Cheuk Hang, Jackie and Mr. TSE Hon
Kit, Kevin has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing on 3
October 2007 and 8 September 2008 and will confinue
thereafter unless terminated by either party with at least
three months advance notice in writing.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the directors of the
Company has entered into any service confracts with
any member of the Group (excluding confracts expiring
or determinable by the employer within one year
without payment of compensatfion (other than statutory
compensation)).

Directors’ interests in contracts

Save as disclosed under the section “Continuing
connected tfransactions” below, no other contracts of
significance in relation to the Group's business to which
the Company, its subsidiaries or holding companies was
a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any fime during the year.

Directors’ benefits from rights to acquire shares
or debentures

Under the terms of the Company's share option scheme
adopted on 22 March 2000, the board of directors of
the Company may, at their discretion, invite any full-time
employees or executive directors of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries to subscribe for ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each in the Company. The maximum number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted under the
scheme may not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company. No options have been granted to the
directors since its adoption. The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited amended the Listing Rules governing share
option schemes. The new requirements have come into
effect from 1 September 2002 and render some of the
provisions of the existing Share Option Scheme no longer
applicable.

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or holding companies
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.
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Directors’ interests in shares and underlying
shares

As at 31 March 2010, the interests and long positions of
the directors, chief executives of the Company and their
associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO")) which have been notfified to the
Company pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and long positions which any
such director or chief executive was taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO) and have been
recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant tfo Section 352 of the SFO, or which have been
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to the Model code contained in the Listing Rules, were
as follows :

i)  Long position in shares and underlying shares

Director E=

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Note 1) EETL A (FIEET)
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Note 2) HETE A (FfEE2)
Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin (Note 3) RS (FIEE3)
Mr. YICK Kai Chung SRREE

Note 1: The interests in shares of the Company is held by Fast Way
Management Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry and his spouse
are the beneficiaries.

Note 2 : The interests in shares of the Company is held by New
Happy Times Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and his family are
the beneficiaries.

Note 3 : The interests in shares of the Company is held by Universal
Star Group Limited. Mr TSE Hon Kit, Kevin and his family are
the beneficiaries.
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- 13,805,105 5.98%

- 16,467,518 7.13%

- 40,034,804 17.33%
6,076,674 - 2.63%
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Directors’ interests in shares and underlying ZEZERROREERG &R (@)

shares (cont’d)

= i) Negotiator Consultants Limited (“NCL") ii) Negotiator Consultants

= Limited ([NCLJ)

EE Number of ordinary shares held

= HENERGZRE

5 Personal Family Corporate Other

£ interest interest interest interest Total
g Director ¢ EAEE FEKEE LFEE RKt#ER #B
3 Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Note 4)  $573% 54 (HsE4) - - - 1 1
s Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Note 4)  Bi7 8 54 (HisE4) - 1 - 1 1
s Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin (Note 4) B8 %4 (Kiz4) - ] - 1 ]

Note 4: Such share is held by Bache Hill Group Limited (“BHGL").

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or their
associates had, as at 31 March 2010, any inferests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
which were required, pursuant to the Listing Rules, to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year
was the Company, its subsidiaries or holding company
a party to any arrangement to enable the directors,
their spouses or children under 18 years of age to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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Biographical details of directors and senior
management

Executive directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, aged 53, is a founding member of
the Group and the Chairman of the Company. Mr. TSE
possesses over 25 years of experience in the trading of
building materials. He is responsible for the planning of the
Group's overall strategies and the overall management of
the Group.

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, aged 51, is the managing director
of the Company and joined the Group in 1979. Mr. TSE
possesses over 25 years of experience in the trading of
building materials and is responsible for the retail business
of the Group. Mr. TSE also assists in the strategic planning
and management of the Group. He is a brother of Mr. TSE
Sun Fat, Henry, the Chairman of the Group.

Mr. LAU Shiu Sun, aged 42, joined the Group in 1994.
Mr. LAU was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 10 December 2001, before his appointment,
Mr. Lau-was a sales manager of the Group and is
responsible for project sales. He graduated from Hong
Kong Baptist University (formerly Baptist College) in 1992
with a bachelor of science degree.

Mr. YICK Kai Chung, aged 51, joined the Group in 1979
and is a director of five subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
YICK possesses over 25 years of experience in building
materials industry and is responsible for overseeing major
financial statements and wholesale business of the Group
and products sourcing and technical support.

Mr. FUNG Cheuk Hang, Jackie, aged 39, joined the
Group in 2004, is responsible for the management of
project sales in kitchen fittings of the Group. Graduated
in 1994 from University of Toronto, Canada with a maijor in
business administration, he possesses over thirteen years
experience in the industry. Mr. FUNG is responsible for the
development of the Group’'s marketing strategies and
sales of kitchen fittings.

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, aged 30, joined the Group in
2004. Mr. TSE graduated from University of Toronto with a
bachelor degree of Commerce. He is a director of three
subsidiaries of the Company and responsible for internal
information technology development, the launching
of the furniture business and the marketing of products
distributed by the Group. Mr. TSE is a nephew of Mr. TSE
Sun Po, Tony, the managing director of the Group.
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Biographical details of directors and senior
management (cont'd)

Independent Non-executive directors

Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.P. aged 63, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director on 28 January
2000. Mr. LEUNG holds a Master of Business Administration
Degree from the University of East Asia, Macau (now
known as “the University of Macau”). Mr. LEUNG is a
senior practicing director of Wong Lam Leung & Kwok
C.P.A. Ltd.. He is a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of International
Accountants. Mr. LEUNG is an associate of the Institute
of Chartered Accounts in England & Wales, the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong, the member of the Macau Society
of Certified Practicing Accounts, the Society of Chinese
Accounts & Auditors, the Chartered Management Institute
and the International Institute of Management. Mr. LEUNG
is an Independent Non-executive Director of Chevalier
Pacific Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic, aged 61, was appoinfed as
an independent non-executive director on 19 June 2001.
He graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
in 1972 with honours bachelor’'s degree of Social Science
in Economics. He was appointed director and general
manager of Hongkong Ferry (Holdings) Ltd., formerly The
Hongkong & Yaumatei Ferry Co., Ltd. until late 1989. He
has been actively involved in China tfrade and garment
industry over the last few years.

Mr. WAN Sze Chung, aged 37, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 27 September
2004. Mr. WAN obtained a Master degree in Business
Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong,
a Master degree in Education (Counselling & Guidance)
from the Newcastle University of United Kingdom and
a 2nd Bachelor degree in Chinese Law from Tsinghua
University. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a Fellow Member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. WAN
is a director of training and consultancy firm specialising
in corporate and personal training. In addition, Mr. WAN
is also the president of the Institute of Professional Trainers
and Coaches (HK) and the Hong Kong Chapter Leader of
International Coach Federation (USA).
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Biographical details of directors and senior
management (cont'd)

Senior Management

Mr. AU Lai Chuen, Hercules, aged 53, joined the Group in
1982 and is a director of one subsidiary of the Company.
Mr. AU possesses over 25 years of experience in the
building materials industry and is responsible for project
related sales and marketing activities.

Mr. LO Wai Man, aged 56, joined the Group in 1979. Mr.
LO is a technical director and is responsible for overseeing
provision of technical support for bathroom collections.
He possesses over 25 years of experience in selling building
materials and is a licensed plumber.

Mr. CHANG Kai Chuen, Roy, aged 36, joined the Group
in 1991. Mr. CHANG is a general manager of project
sales division. He possesses over 10 years of experience in
building materials industry and is responsible for project
sales.

Mr. MAK Lai Man, Eric, aged 43, joined the Group in 1992.
Mr. MAK obtained a diploma certificate in Sociology
from Hong Kong Shue Yan University, formerly Shue Yan
College and a certificated of Organisational Behaviour
from Heriot-Watt University. He possesses over 10 years
experience in building materials industry. Mr. MAK is a
marketing manager of the Group and is now responsible
for project sales in sanitary products.

Ms. LAU Mei Fong, Cherry, aged 38, joined the Group
since 1996. Ms. LAU is the general manager of the retails
shops of the Group and is in charge of overall shop
management. She possesses over 10 years of experience
in retail business. Ms. LAU is a sister-in-law of Mr. TSE Sun Po,
Tony, the managing director of the Group.

Mr. LI Kwan Wai, aged 53, joined the Group in 2009. Mr.
LI is a Hong Kong Registered Architect graduated from
University of Hong Kong. Mr. LI is our legal representative
of the Group’s wholly subsidiary Shanghai Techpro Interior
Decoration Company Limited. Mr. LI possesses over 20
years professional experience in project management,
architectural design and planning and involved in major
building projects in China, Canada, Vietnam and Hong
Kong. Mr. LI also obtained a master degree in Engineering
(Urban Planning) from Tsinghua University, China.
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Directors’ Report

Substantial shareholders

The register of substantial shareholders maintained under
Section 336 of the SFO of shows that as at 31 March
2010, the Company had been notified of the following
substantial shareholders’ interests, being 5% or more of
the Company’s issued share capital. These interests are
in addition to those disclosed above in respect of the
directors and chief executive.

Long position in shares of the Company

EEERE

FERR
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BEARARDZER

Number of Percentage

Ordinary shares of Issued

beneficially held share capital

HERTRE

Name of Shareholder BRREE B in & B Z LBl

Universal Star Group Limited Universal Star Group Limited

(Note 5) (Bit=ES) 40,034,804 17.33%

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin (Note 5) R (FIEES) 40,034,804 17.33%

Happy Voice Limited Happy Voice Limited 28,300,465 12.25%

New Happy Times Limited (Note 5)  New Happy Times Limited (ftzE5) 16,467,518 7.13%

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Note 5) T S (FIEES) 16,467,518 7.13%
Fast Way Management Limited Fast Way Management Limited

(Note 5) (Fit=ES) 13,805,105 5.98%

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Note 5) FETE S (MIEES) 13,805,105 5.98%

Note 5: Messrs. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, TSE Sun Po, Tony and TSE Sun Fat,
Henry's interests in the Company are represented by Universal
Star Group Limited, New Happy Times Limited and Fast Way
Management Limited respectively.

Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.
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Major suppliers and customers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year
aftributable to the Group's maijor suppliers and customers
are as follows :

Purchases

The largest supplier 16%
Five largest suppliers combined 46%
Sales

The largest customer 25%
Five largest customers combined 49%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the directors own more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the
major suppliers or customers noted above.

Continuing connected transactions

The related party fransaction as disclosed in note 28 fo
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2010 in respect of rental expenses of approximately
HK$2,220,000 paid to NCL also constitutes a connected
party tfransaction. NCL is a subsidiary of BHGL in which Mr.
TSE Sun Fat, Henry, Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and Mr. TSE Hon Kit,
Kevin have beneficial interests. The Stock Exchange has
granted conditional waivers to the Company from strict
compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules. In the opinion of the directors including the
independent non-executive directors of the Company,
the fransactions were conducted in the ordinary course
of the business of the Group and in accordance with the
terms of the agreements.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors
of the Company, as at the date of this report, there is
sufficient public float of the Company's securities as
required under the Listing Rules.
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Auditors

On 1 June 2007, Moores Rowland Mazars changed ifs
name to Moores Rowland, on the same day, Moores
Rowland combined its business with Grant Thornton. In
this connection, the Board appointed Grant Thornton as
auditors of the Company effective 13 September 2007.
Grant Thornton will hold office until the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to
be held on ? September 2010.

Grant Thornton will retire and be eligible to offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be
submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting
to authorise the Board to appoint auditors and to fix their
remuneration.

For and on behalf of the Board

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Chairman
Hong Kong, 11 June 2010

Directors’ Report
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Corporate Governance Report

E. Bon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) endeavors o
maintain its high standard of corporate governance,
and continues to review and reinforce its corporate
governance measures. The Company believes
that accountability and reporting system with high
fransparency for the Company’s operation has been
in place. Disclosure could also be made fimely and
accurately. At the same fime, the rights of shareholders
can be treated and protected equitably.

The Company is led by an efficient and responsible Board,
which is comprised of individuals with high qualifications
and relevant experience. This can ensure that the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) maintain
good corporafe governance practices and have
comprehensive internal control systems, so as fo cope
with the Group's development strategies and increase the
shareholders’ value.

The Board has complied with the code provision listed
in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
"Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended
31 March 2010 with the exception of the code provision
A.4.1. Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules stipulates the code
of good corporate governance (the “"Code”), and two
levels of recommendations: (a) code provisions; and (b)
recommended best practices. It is also states that issuers
are expected to comply with, but may choose to deviate
from, the code provisions. The recommended best
practices are for guidance only. The Company opted to
comply with mandatory code provisions and provisions on
recommended best practices that are considered by the
Board as reasonable and appropriate.

Under the code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term. Currently, non-
executive directors are not appointed for a specific term
of service. This consfitutes a deviation from code provision
A.4.1. However, they are subject to refirement by rotation
at annual general meeting under the articles of association
of the Company. As such, the Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company’s corporate governance practices are no less
exacting than those in the Code.
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Corporate Governance Report

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “"Model Code”) in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules sets a required standard against
which directors must measure their conduct regarding
fransactions in securities of their listed companies. The
Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code
of conduct regarding director’s securifies transactions.
Having made specific enquiry of all directors, the directors
have confirmed compliance with the required standard
set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended.

The Board

The Board comprises six executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors. The names of the
directors are as follows:

Executive directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman)

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Managing Director)
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun

Mr. YICK Kai Chung

Mr. FUNG Cheuk Hang, Jackie

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.P.
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic
Mr. WAN Sze Chung

Biographies for all directors are listed in Biographical details
of directors and senior management set out on pages 17
to 19.

The Board of the Company assumes the responsibility for
leadership and control of the Company and is responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by direcfing
and supervising ifs affairs.

The Board is responsible for establishing the strategic
direction of the Company, setting the objectives
of management, monitoring the performance of
management, overseeing the management of the
Company’s relationships with shareholders, ensuring that a
framework of prudent and effective controls is in place to
enable risks to be assessed and managed, and setting the
Company'’s values and standards.
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The Board (cont’d)

When the Board delegates management and
administrative functions to management, it has given clear
directions on the powers of management with respect to
the circumstances where management is to report back
and obtain prior approval from the Board before making
decisions or entering info any commitment on behalf of
the Company.

The task of the management and staff of the Company
is the successful implementation of the strategies and
directions as determined by the Board. In doing so,
they must apply business principles and ethics, which
are consistent with those expected by the Board and
Shareholders and other stakeholders.

The independent non-executive directors help tfo ensure
that the Board can make independent judgment
efficiently. The independent non-executive directors
possess appropriate professional qualification among
them, some possess expertise in accounting and financial
management. Each independent non-executive director
has confirmed to the Stock Exchange his independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, and
has also submitted an annual written confirmation to the
Company confirming his independence. All non-executive
directors are engaged by contract every year and are
subject to retirement in accordance with the Company’s
Arficles of Association.

Except as disclosed in the Annual Report, there is no
special relationship, including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship among the members
of the Board.

All directors actively participated in the Board meetings
to discuss the overall strategies and business directions
of the Group. Throughout the year, the Company held
four regular and seven irregular meetings. To ensure that
the directors could obtain all related information for
performing their duties and responsibilities, documents
for the Board meeting were supplied to directors for
their consideration before the meeting according to the
regulations set out in the Listing Rules and code provision.
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The Board (cont’d)

Throughout the year, the Company Director’s attendance
was as follows:

Executive Directors Attendance
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman) 11
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Managing Director) 11
Mr. YICK Kai Chung 10
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun 10
Mr. FUNG Cheuk Hang, Jackie 10
Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin 10
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.P. 6
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic 6
Mr. WAN Sze Chung 6

The Board makes arrangements to provide opportunities
for all directors to include proposed discussion issued in
the agenda of regular Board meetings. At least 14 days
notice are given in respect of regular Board meetings. For
all other Board meetings, reasonable notices are given.

Management provides the Board and committees
with sufficient, adequate and timely information which
is complete and reliable and which enables directors
to make informed decisions on matters placed before
them, and perform their duties and responsibilities as the
directors. Management provides adequate explanations
and information to the Board to enable directors to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before them for approval. In addition, the
Board and each director have separate and independent
access to the Company’s senior management.

Minutes of each Board meeting and committee meeting
are kept by the company secretary (the "Company
Secretary”) and are available for inspection by any
director. Minutes record in sufficient detail the matters
considered by the Board and the decisions reached.

All directors have free access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary with a view
tfo ensuring that Board procedures are followed

and that applicable laws and regulations are
complied with. Moreover, all directors may seek
independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances in the furtherance of their duties and
for the associated fees at the Company’s expenses.
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The Board (cont’d)

If a substantial shareholder or a director has a conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which
the Board has determined to be material, the matter
will be dealt with by holding a Board meeting set up for
that purpose pursuant to a resolution passed in a Board
meeting. Only independent non-executive directors who,
and whose associates, have no materials interest in the
fransaction concerned will be present at such meeting.
Directors concerns must abstain from voting on any Board
resolufion and will not be counted in the quorum.

Chairman and Managing Director

Chairman of the Board and Managing Director (in this
report, “Managing Director” is equivalent to “Chief
Executive Officer” set out in Appendix 23 of the Listing
Rules) are two clearly separated roles and are performed
by different individuals. Mr. TSE Sun Fatf, Henry, Chairman
of the Board, is responsible for managing the Board. Mr.
TSE Sun Po, Tony, Managing Director, is responsible for
the Company's operations. The division of responsibilities
between the Chairman of the Board and the Managing
Director has been clearly defined and the written tferms of
reference have been set.

Responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board are as
follows:

(a) Providing leadership for the Board;

(b) Ensuring all Directors are properly briefed on matters to
be discussed at Board meetings;

(c) Ensuring all Directors receive adequate, complete and
reliable information in a fimely manner;

(d) Ensuring that the Board works effectively, discharges
its responsibilities and discusses all key issues in a timely
manner;

(e) Ensuring that, the Company Secretary settles and
approves the agenda for Board meetfings on the
Chairman’s behalf, taking into account any matters
proposed by other Directors for inclusion in the
agenda;
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Chairman and Managing Director (cont'd)

(f) Providing effective communication with Shareholders
and that views of Shareholders are communicated to
the Board as a whole;

(9) Ensuring good corporate governance practices and
procedures are in place;

(h) Giving each Director an opportunity fo express his
views at Board meetings, encouraging all Directors to
fully contribute to the Board’s affairs and ensuring that
the Board acts in the best interests of the Company;
and

(i) Facilitating the effective contribution of all Directors,
in particular Non-executive Directors, and building
constfructive relations between Executive and Non-
executive Directors.

The Managing Director is appointed by the Board, his
responsibilities are as follows:

(a) Providing leadership for the management;

(b) Implementing and reporting to the Board on the
Company’s strategies;

(c) Overseeing the implementation by the Company of
the objectives set by the Board;

(d) Providing all such information to the Board as is
necessary to enable the Board to monitor the
performance of management;

(e) Leading the management of the Company’s
relationships with its stakeholders;

(f) Putting in place programmes for management
development and succession;

(g) Working with the Head of Finance, establishing and
maintaining proper internal confrols and systems as
well as disclosure confrols and procedures; and

(h) Discharging such duties and authorities as may be
delegated in writing to him by the Board.
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Board committees

The Board has established two committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All
Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 29
September 2005. It is comprised of two Independent
Non-executive Directors and one Executive Director. The
Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. WONG Wah,
Dominic.

Roles and function of the Remuneration Committee are as
follows:

(a) Making recommendations to the Board on policy
and structure for the remuneration of Directors,
Senior Management and all other employees of the
corporate office and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing policy on
such remuneration;

(b) Determining the remuneration of all Executive Directors
and Senior Management;

(c) Making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the Non-executive Directors;

(d) Reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by referring to corporate goals and
objectives set by the Board;

(e) Reviewing and approving the compensation payable
to Executive Directors and Senior Management relating
to any loss or termination of their office or appointment
to ensure that such compensation is determined in
accordance with relevant contractual terms;

(f) Reviewing and approving compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct to ensure that such arrangements are
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms; and

(g) Ensuring no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration.
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Board committees (cont’'d)
Remuneration Committee (cont'd)

The Remuneration Committee reports to the Board on
its discussion results and recommendations after each
meeting and provides sufficient resource to discharge
its duties and is authorised by the Board to obtain
independent legal or other professional advices.

Throughout the year, the Remuneration Committee met
once to review the remuneration of the Executive Directors
and Senior Management of the Company. Discussion
results and recommendations have been proposed to the
Board for its review.

Throughout the year, committee members’ attendance
was as follows:

Remuneration Committee Members Attendance

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic 1
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee)

Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.P. 1
(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. YICK Kai Chung (Executive Director) 1

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee established on 22 March 2000, and is
currently comprised of three Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. LEUNG
Kwong Kin, J.P..

Roles and functions of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(1) Handling the relationship between the Company
and the external auditors (include: making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditors,
approve remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditors, handle issues for the resignation
or dismissal of external auditors, review and monitor
the independence and objectivity of the external
auditors and effectiveness of the audit process and
develop and implement policy on the engagement of
an external auditor to supply non-audit services);

(2) Reviewing the financial information of the Company;
and

(3) Monitoring the financial reporting system and internal
confrol procedures of the Company.
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Board committees (cont’'d)
Audit Committee (cont'd)

The Audit Committee reports to the Board on its discussion
results and recommendations after each meeting.

Throughout the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the
2009 annual report and interim report of the Company,
discussed the effectiveness of the internal control with
external auditors, and reviewed the 2010 budget auditing
fees.

In addition, the Audit Committee considered and
reviewed the annual report for the year ended annual
result on 11 June 2010, and proposed to the Board for their
approval.

All members of the Audit Committee actively participated
in the committee’s meetings. Throughout the year, the
Audit Committee met five fimes. Discussion results and
recommendations have been proposed to the Board for
its review, and related recommendations were adopted
by the Board.

Throughout the year, committee members’ attendance
was as follows:

Audit Committee Members Attendance
Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.P. 5
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Chairman of Audit Committee)

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic S
(Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. WAN Sze Chung 4

(Independent Non-executive Director)

All Directors acknowledge their responsibilities in preparing
the financial statements. As at 31 March 2010, none of
the Directors are aware of any uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubts upon
the Company’s ability fo continue as a going concern.
As such, the Directors have prepared the Company’s
financial statements on a going concern basis.

Responsibilities of external auditors to the financial
statements are set out in the auditors’ report of the 2010
annual report.
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Nomination of Directors

The Board has not established a nomination committee.
According to the Artficles of Association of the Company,
the Board has the power from time to time and at any
fime to appoint any person as a Director either to fill
a casual vacancy or as an addition tfo the Board. The
Board reviews the structure, size and composition of the
Board from time to fime and makes recommendation on
the appointment of Directors. During the year, except
as disclosed above, there has been no change to the
members of the Board.

Remuneration of the auditors

For the year ended 31 March 2010, audit fee paid by the
Company to Grant Thornton (independent auditors of the
Company) was HK$640,000.

Financial reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company and the Group.
The reporting responsibilities of the auditors are set out in
the Independent Auditors’ Report on page 35 to 37 of the
annual report.

Internal control

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system for the Group. The system
is for the interests of the shareholders by protecting the
shareholders’ investment and the assets of the Group.

For implementing internal control effectively, the
Company reviewed the following five elements for internal
control:

(i) Overall control

The Group has established a comprehensive
organisation structure and deployed suitable personnel
for the efficient implementation of policies. Adequate
information is also provided. Executive Directors and
the Senior Management are granted appropriate
authority to execute the strategies, policies and
targets of the Group effectively when risks are
within control. At the same time, the Board
and Senior Management shall communicate

the values and code of conduct of the

Company to all the staff, for maintaining

honesty and a high level of morality. In

addition, all Directors actively partficipate
in the affairs of the Board and the work of all
Board Committees.
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Internal control (cont’d)

(if)

(i)

Risk assessment

The Group determines annual operation targets,
financial reporting targets and compliance targefts in
accordance with the development strategies set by
the Board. This is to ensure that the Group operates
within risks that are of tolerate and reasonable level.

The Company shall review the risks faced by the Group
with external auditors regularly, so as to set a solid base
for the Board to review the effectiveness of internal
control and report fo the shareholders on issues in
relation to internal control.

Control activities

The Group carried out control activities comprising @
diverse range of policies and procedures, including
conducting reviews of actual performance, reviewing
of performance reports, checking information
processing in fransaction, performing physical controls,
analysing performance indicators and dividing and
segregating duties amongst different people.

(iv) Information and communication

The Board and Senior Management shall communicate
the importance of conftrol to the staff, enabling the
staff to understand that control must be implemented.
The staff shall regularly report any information related
to operation, financial and regulation to the Board
and Senior Management.

The Senior Management shall provide the latest
information on the Group to the Board and the Board
Committees regularly or under material circumstances,
in a view to have sufficient preparation for any risks.

In order to lower risks, the Company actively
communicates with, and considers opinions from, all
external parties, so that it is able to take appropriate
actions in face of risks.

Monitoring

The Company shall continuously assess and properly
report the performance of the internal control system.
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Corporate Governance Report

Shareholders’ rights and investors’ relationship

It is the Company’s policies to have open communication
and disclose information in a fair manner. Information
disclosure is a key means fo enhance corporate
governance standard. Shareholders can assess the
Company’s performance based on the information and
provide opinions to the Company. Information relating
to the Group and its business, together with its financial
condition, are disclosed in the 2010 annual report and the
Company's website at www.ebon.com.hk.

All registered shareholders shall receive notice of the
Annual General Meeting (the “AGM”) and special general
meeting (fogether the “Meeting”) by post. The notice of
the Meeting contains an agenda, resolutions proposed
and a voting form. All shareholders, whose shares are
registered in the register of members, are entitled o
attend the Meeting. Shareholders who cannot attend the
Meeting can appoint their proxies or the chairman of the
meeting as their proxies by completing the proxy form
enclosed with the notice of the meeting and returning it
to the Company’s share registrar. Pursuant to the Listing
Rules, all resolutions at general meetings shall be decided
on a vofing by poll. Procedures for demanding a vote by
poll, together with the notice of the meeting, have been
enclosed with a circular dispatched to the shareholders.
The procedures shall be read out at the Meeting by the
chairman of the meeting.

In addition, separate resolutions for actually separated
issues shall be proposed to the Meeting for the approval
of shareholders.

The AGM is considered as an annual significant event
of the Company. The AGM can provide a precious
opportunity for the shareholders and the Board to
exchange consfructive opinions. All Directors and the
Senior Management shall attend the AGM. Apart from
attending the AGM, the Chairman of the Board shall
arrange the chairmen of each Board Committee to
aftend and answer questions at the AGM.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Grant Thornton
H¥E

Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd

To the members of E. Bon Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of E. Bon Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set
out on pages 38 to 98, which comprise the consolidated
and the Company statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2010, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal confrol relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

@ Grant Thornton
H9E

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s infernal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate fo provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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@ GrantThornton
HE

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s
and the Group's affairs as at 31 March 2010 and of the
Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Grant Thornton

Certified Public Accountants
6th Floor, Nexxus Building

41 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

11 June 2010
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REZEHWE R
For the year ended 31 March 2010
BE_T-TF A= HLFE

2010 2009
5 225 —ETNEF
& Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
= B &£ TERT TR
8 Turnover Exg 5 446,910 361,102
i Cost of sales PER A (279,824) (221,973)
S Gross profit £7 167,086 139,129
< Other income H o g 25 5 807 2,330
S Selling and distribution expenses &R 5 R A (80,755) (75,983)
Administrative expenses THHEX (36,344) (32,368)
Fair value change on derivative TEeRMIACATELE
financial instruments (322) (676)
Valuation deficit on building YESHHE (115) (112)
Finance costs MBER 8 (653) (1,758)
Profit before income tax BRErSRAER 7 49,704 30,562
Income tax expense FriSHip % 11(a) (8.657) (5,556)
Profit for the year FERT 41,047 25,006
Other comprehensive income Hth2m
Exchange gain on franslation of BEBFIINGE DT
financial statements of foreign MERRNELER
operations 326 18
Surplus on revaluation of Y E il I &
properties held for own use 6,400 3,387
Tax effect relating to components HEtt2 Mk E 2 HESHE
of other comprehensive income (907) (219)
Other comprehensive income FTEAtZEKI(RRE)
for the year, net of tax 5,819 3,186
Total comprehensive income FERZEWNEEE
for the year 46,866 28,192
Earnings per share for profit KRR RAFEAEBERF
attributable to the equity holders  z & RiEF
of the Company during the year
- Basic -HX 14 17.8 cents #fill 10.8 cents &l




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land lease payments
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Derivative financial instruments
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Interest-bearing borrowings
Provision for tax

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

AERAR
FRBAE
PN
B+ R
ELHEAE

ADRE
e

FB U B AR R HL At R UL RR

TEEMITA
ReEkBReE

i B % R

A BRI H B FROE

BERE
BIERE

mERESRHE
REEREDAR

FREBRAR
BERE
EEBIEEE

RERE

Notes
M 5E

15
16
24

19
20
21

22
23

23
24

GEaMBEMRRRK
As at 31 March 2010
RZZE—ZTF=A=+—H

2010 2009
—e-2% —B2ENE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT FBT
52,645 45,734
29,911 30,534
1,570 1,627
84,126 77,895
84,742 73,469
122,979 90,720
= 322
51,918 39,110
259,639 203,621
38,942 30,579
47,340 30,032
3,996 3,501
90,278 64,112
169,361 139,509
253,487 217,404
13,525 14,820
4,760 3,853
18,285 18,673

235,202 198,731
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

EQUITY

Equity attributable to Company’s
equity holders

Share capital

Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

or
e o

o

R p— =
- :

ar— . .‘__.-r:_',..-—
.
.

-

LAU Shiu Sun

FECE
Director
EZ

Notes
By &
ER2
FAFIESREAREES
B AR 25
(R 26
EoEm

TSE Hon Kit, Kevin
i

Director

EZ

Ga B BEAMRR K
As at 31 March 2010
RZE—ZF=A=+—H

2010 2009
—E-Z% —EZTNE
HKS'000 HK$'000
TET TET
23,100 23,100
212,102 175,631
235,202 198,731




Statement of Financial Position

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets
Interest in subsidiaries

Current assets
Due from subsidiaries
Prepayments and
other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Other payables
Tax payable

Due to subsidiaries

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

o
i
o=F

_,.A""dﬁ P B,

—— - N
— . 1___.5;_.-_
-

0,

-

LAU Shiu Sun

BB
Director
EE

RERAR
FRBEE

MY B &

nERE

UK 2 Rl 2 R

RBMBER

H 1t & YRR
ReEkRe%E

wE AR

B Hi R

HAtfE 3 5R

AT HIE 2 R 25

mEHEERE
RREFRTDAR

RERE

o
R A
A

EaeE

TSE Hon Kit, Kevin

WER
Director
EE

Notes
M 5E

17

18

20

22

18

25
26

Bt & AR M &
As at 31 March 2010
R=ZF—FF=A=1—H

2010 2009
= i —EEhpF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T
90,917 90,917
64,569 65,262
148 38

80 69

64,797 65,369

74 45

- 19

59,949 50,273
60,023 50,437
4,774 14,932
95,691 105,849
95,691 105,849
23,100 23,100
72,591 82,749
95,691 105,849
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
CABELRES

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BE_T-TF A= HLFE

«
= 2010 2009
= —Z-Zf —EZNE
& Notes HK$'000 HK$’ 000
= Bt &E THET TR
8 Cash flow from operating activities EEFHZRELTE
= Profit before income tax BBt A% 7 49,704 30,562
- Adjustments for: R
2 Interest expense B A 653 1,758
8 Interest income B A (69) (379)
¢ Provision for slow-moving WHEEERE
inventories 3,621 3,334
Provision for impairment of BZEWRTRERE
trade receivables 209 118
Write off of other receivables H 1l FE 2 K 75 B AR 819 -
Reversal of provision for doubtful ~ REREFDE
debt - (3)
Loss arising from change in HNERBENZ
fair value of forward foreign DNFEBE
exchange contracts 322 676
Gain on disposal of property, HEBTEEE KSR
plant and equipment - (11)
Revaluation deficit on building Y% & R E 115 112
Depreciation and amortisation WER,BEH 6,896 6,801
Operating profit before working EEESEE
capital changes: 62,270 42,968
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories && (&), #HP (14,894) 4,146
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and  EWERER K H M EKRRIEZ
other receivables (#m),/ ®L (32,184) 32,280
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and BN ERRRHEMEARE
other payables Z2gm,/ () 8,222 (14,485)
Cash generated from operations REXKRBERS 23,414 64,909
Income tax refund Fiigpiaig 37 -
Income tax paid X EEH (8,419) (5,667)
Net cash from operating activities K& EEFFEHEESFHE 15,032 59,242

<




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Cash flow from investing activities

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Interest received

Proceeds on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Payment of lease premium
for land

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Net cash used in investing
activities

Cash flow from financing activities

Bank loan raised

Interest paid on bank borrowings

Interest paid on obligations under
finance lease

Dividends paid

Repayment of other bank loans

Repayment of obligations under
finance leases

Increase/(Decrease) in frust
receipt loans and import invoice
financing

Net cash generated from/(used in)
financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, on cash held

Cash and cash equivalents
at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents af the
end of the year, represented
by bank balances and cash

Notes
M &
BREEFHZHERE
Uk BB B D A 27
2 W FI &
HENE -HER
REBFENIEA
EALHEEER

BEUNX BERRE

REZDHARTFHE

BAEDZAGHE
H R RITEE

B AR RS
EAMERERS

11 31

EAKRE
BEHMRITER
HEREHERH

BAEREREBERKED
ERRzEM ORD)

REZDZRERA/
(Fiit) 388

RERRESEL MM/
(%)
EX2HURSHE

ENzRERREEE

ERzZBEERREEE
(RITEBRRE)

GERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2010

HE_Z-ZEZA-+—HIFE

2010 2009
—s-3% —gThE
HK$'000 HK$’ 000
TET FTHET
(774) -
69 379

= 1

- (31,157)
(6,810) (8,583)
(7,515) (39,350)
7,731 17,000
(648) (1,748)
(7) (10)
(10,395) (12,810
(4,570) (6,930)
(56) (62)
12,908 (27,905)
4,965 (32,465)
12,482 (12,573)
326 18
39,110 51,665
51,918 39,110
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SARERBDE

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BE-_T-TF=-A=+—HILFE

e
«
= Share Share Revaluation  Merger  Capital Exchange Statutory Retained
f; capital  premium reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  edrnings Total
&l BF BHAE 2 EARE AHEE BFRE ERRE IERG KRIEN &t
l‘; HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Bt THT  TET THET TET 2 THT 2 TERT TET @ TET  TET
9 1 April 2008 RZEEN\ENA-H 21,000 40,261 18,986 6,979 2,896 297 - 92930 183,349
:"_E Capitalisation on bonus issue BITAR
2 of shares 2,100 (2,100) - - -
e Dividends R - - - (12810) (12810}
<
é Transaction with owners HEGZHEEZRS 2,100 (2,100) - (12.810)  (12.810)
¢ Profit for the year EERA - - - 25006 25006
Other comprehensive income Hitt2 AU S
Exchange gain on franslation of R EE KB H
financial statements of BRERNERER
foreign operations - - 18 - 18
Surplus on revaluation of MEEMNE
properties held for own use - - - - 3,387
Tox effect relating to components  E 12 il 2
of other comprehensive income  HEFE - - - - (219)
Total comprehensive income EEXEKE - - 18 25,006 28,192
At 31 March 2009 RZBEAE
ZB=+—-H 23,100 38,161 315 105,126 198,731
At 1 April 2009 RZEZhENA-H 23,100 38,161 35 105,126 198,731
Dividends Re - - - (10395 (10,395)
Transaction with owners HERFEEZRS - - - (10,395) . (10,395)
Profit for the year EERA - - - 41,047 41,047
Other comprehensive income Hitt2E KRS
Exchange gain on franslation of & 4MKi B A &
financial statements of HRERNERER
foreign operations = - = = — 326 = - 326
Surplus on revaluation of MES LY E
properties held for own use - - 6,400 - - - - - 6,400
Tax effect relafing fo components — E 2 iz 2
of other comprehensive income ~ RIEZE - - (907) - - - - - (907)
Total comprehensive income FEXHKS 5,493 - - 326 ~ 41047 46,866
Transfer fo statutory reserve ERELAERE = - - - - - 261 (261) -
At 31 March 2010 R-S-2%
ZB=+-H 23,100 38,161 27,647 6,979 2,896 641 261 135517 235,202




Notes to the Financial Statements

. General information

E. Bon Holdings Limited (“the Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins,
Drive P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands and its principal place of business is 16th — 18th
Floors, First Commercial Building, 33 Leighton Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. Its shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The principal activity
of the Company is investment holding. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the importing and sale of
architectural builders hardware, bathroom, kitchen
collections and furniture in Hong Kong.

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”), which collective term includes
all individual HKFRS, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2010 were approved for issue by the board of directors
on 11 June 2010.

B % R R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BE_T-ZTF=-RA=t—HLFE

. —REH

BBTERERAB(NADA AHE
HEEMAYEREETAAEZMHMS
B ACricket Square, Hutchins, Drive
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands R E X &
BEMBREBMBEREEIIRE
—BEREI6-18 - HREREBH
EXRGHBERATDZERLT c XA F
TEXEBAREER -HNBARAE
DEBAREEENRSEORBEERZETR
e H8 BEXBREM -

AUBRRCEREBETAOSHM
ZHEBANEEMBREER  BE
FFEERERNNEEMBRERER &
BEFEAREE BEEEEMNZE
ARARERQTRG 2 BEREMR
BoUhBBERRABTHSEBRER
SHERAABSLIRAZERAKE
BRE e

BE-Z-ZSF=-A=1+—HILEEH
BRECHR-ZZE-ZTEABE+-HEES
EeELESEBRTIZE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Adoption of new and amended HKFRSs

In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) have applied, for the first time,
the following new standards, amendments and
inferpretations (the “new HKFRSs") issued by the
HKICPA, which are effective for the Group'’s financial
statements beginning on 1 April 2009.

B A% R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BE_T-TF A= HLFE

2. RBHHREBHTEBHBRE
%8|

ARARMBAR([AEE])REFE
BEXRERUTHEBEHMASEM2
Al R BETRERE BRARAERE
H-ZZNFNA-BRBZHBEX -

HKFRSs
(Amendments)

HKAS 1
(Revised 2007)
HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1

(Amendments)

HKFRS T & HKAS 27

(Amendments)

HKFRS 2
(Amendments)

HKFRS 7
(Amendments)

HKFRS 8
HK(IFRIC)-Int 9
(Amendments)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 13
HK(IFRIC)-Int 15
HK(IFRIC)-Int 16
HK(IFRIC)-Int 18

HKAS 39
(Amendments)

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2008

Presentation of Financial
Statements
Borrowing Costs

Puttable Financial Instruments
and Obligations Arising on
Liquidation

Costs of an Investment in a
Subsidiary, Jointly Conftrolled
Entity or Associate

Share-based Payment —
Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

Operating Segments

Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives

Customer Loyalty Programmes

Agreements for the
Construction of Real Estate

Hedges of a Net Investment
in a Foreign Operation

Transfers of Assets from
Customers

Financial Instruments —
“Recognition and
Measurement” —
Embedded Derivatives

ERPBREEN . —ZINFEE
SEME MRBEERZ
FEQE

FAEHEAN 2IHHRE
(BB LFEET)

BREERA23 BB
(Z2ZLFEBT)

EREHERI2R TEEHKTAR
ERETEA(BT)  FRELZEHR

ERUEREER WELR  LREH
FIRRELLTEN  LRGBEELRZ
B275 (BT K) RERK

ERUEREER? URBZ A —
(#53T) BERGRZH

ERUMEREERN7 BEIE HE —
(153T) EHEUBIARE

ZHE

ERURREENS 2END

EREBUERERE EMBRARNTEIA
ZES-RBI(BY) REEIA

EREABHKRERE ZFFAHHE
ZER-REI13

FEEERERERE REHERENE
REE-REIS

EREABUERERE BNEEREFE
ZES-2EB16 i

EEERNERERE HNEFEZEE

ZEE-REI8
ERPBRERERI9
(837
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2. Adoption of new and amended HKFRSs (cont’d)

The adoption of these new HKFRSs, amendments to
HKFRSs and interpretations had no material effect on
the results and financial position of the Group for the
current or prior years.

HKAS 1 (REVISED 2007) PRESENTATION-OF-FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The adoption of HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) makes certain
changes to the format and titles of the primary
financial statements and to the presentation of
some items within these statements. It also gives
rise to additional disclosures. The measurement
and recognition of the Group's assets, liabilities,
income and expenses is unchanged. However, some
items that were recognised directly in equity are
now recognised in other comprehensive income,
for example, revaluations of property, plant and
equipment. HKAS 1 affects the presentation of owner
changes in equity and intfroduces a ‘Statement of
comprehensive income’'. Comparatives have been
restated to conform with the revised standard. The
Group has applied changes fo its accounting policies
on presentation of financial statements and segment
reporting retrospectively. However, the changes to
the comparatives have not affected the consolidated
or the Company’s statement of financial position
at T April 2008 and accordingly this statement is not
presented.

HKFRS 3 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (REVISED 2008)

The standard is applicable in reporfing periods
beginning on or affer 1 July 2009 and will be applied
prospectively. The new standard still requires the
use of the purchase method (now renamed the
acquisition method) but introduces material changes
to the recognition and measurement of consideration
fransferred and the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities, and the measurement of non-controlling
interests (previously known as minority interest) in the
acquiree. The new standard is expected fo have a
significant effect on business combinations occurring in
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Adoption of new and amended HKFRSs (cont'd)

HKFRS 7 (AMENDMENTS) IMPROVING DISCLOSURES
ABOUT FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The amendments require additional disclosures for
financial instruments which are measured at fair
value in the statement of financial position. These fair
value measurements are categorised intfo a three-
level fair value hierarchy, which reflects the extent
of observable market data used in making the
measurements. In addition, the maturity analysis for
derivative financial liabilities is disclosed separately
and should show remaining confractual mafturities for
those derivatives where this information is essential
for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows.
The Group has taken advantage of the transitional
provisions in the amendments and has not provided
comparative information in respect of the new
requirements.

HKFRS 8 OPERATING SEGMENTS

The adoption of HKFRS 8 has not affected the identified
and reportable operating segments for the Group.
However, reported segment information is now based
on internal management reporting information that
is regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
maker. In the previous annual financial statements,
segments were identified by reference to the
dominant source and nature of the Group'’s risks and
returns. Comparatives have been restated on a basis
consistent with the new standard.

At the date of authorisation of these financial
statements, certain new and amended HKFRSs have
been published but are not yet effective, and have
not been adopted early by the Group.

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements
will be adopted in the Group’'s accounting policy
for the first period beginning after the effective date
of the pronouncement. Information on new and
amended HKFRSs that are expected to have impact
on the Group's accounting policy is provided below.
Certain other new and amended HKFRSs have been
issued but are not expected to have a material impact
of the Group's financial statements.
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2. Adoption of new and amended HKFRSs (cont’d)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The standard is effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1st January, 2013 and addresses
the classification and measurement of financial
assets. The new standard reduces the number of
measurement categories of financial assets and all
financial assets will be measured at either amortised
cost or fair value based on the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. Fair
value gains and losses will be recognised in profit or loss
except for those on certain equity investments which
will be presented in other comprehensive income. The
directors are currently assessing the possible impact of
the new standard on the Group'’s results and financial
position in the first year of application.

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTS 2009

The HKICPA has issued Improvements to HKFRS 2009.
Most of the amendments become effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2010. The
Group expects the amendment to HKAS 17 Leases to
be relevant to the Group's accounting policies. Prior to
the amendment, HKAS 17 generally required a lease
of land to be classified as an operating lease. The
amendment requires a lease of land to be classified
as an operating or finance lease in accordance with
the general principles in HKAS 17. The Group will need
to reassess the classification of its unexpired leases
of land at 1st April 2010 on the basis of information
existing at the incepftion of those leases in accordance
with the transitional provisions for the amendment. The
amendment will apply retrospectively except where
the necessary information is not available. In that
sifuation, the leases will be assessed on the date when
the amendment is adopted. The directors are currently
assessing the possible impact of the amendment on
the Group’s results and financial position in the first
year of application.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Summary of significant accounting policies
3.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for leasehold land
and buildings in Hong Kong and derivative financial
instruments, which are measured at fair value.

3.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 March each year.

Subsidiarities are consolidated from the date on
which conftrol is transferred to the Group. They are
excluded from consolidation from the date the
control cease.

3.3 SUBSIDIARIES

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Company,
directly or indirectly, has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

In consolidated financial statements, acquisition
of subsidiaries (other than those under common
control) is accounted for by applying the purchase
method. This involves the estimation of fair value
of all identifiable assets and liabilities, including
contingent liabilities of the subsidiary, at the
acquisition date, regardless of whether or not they
were recorded in the financial statements of the
subsidiary prior to acquisition. On inifial recognitfion,
the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are
included in the consolidated statement of financial
position at their fair values, which are also used
as the bases for subsequent measurement in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
the investment in subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss. The carrying amount of the
investment is reduced fo its recoverable amount
on an individual basis. Results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

All infra-group fransactions and balances, income
and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.
Unrealised losses resulting from infra-group
fransactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised profits but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies 3. TEEHXE (& i
(cont’d) z
3.4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 3.4M% BMERRE H
Property, plant and equipment, other than BRUNEBz2HELHERTIZ 5
leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong, are ME BERZEURBRZTH <

stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its infended use. Repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during
the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or
valuation less accumulated impairment losses of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives as set out below from the date on
which they are available for use and after taking
info account their estimated residual values, using
the straight-line method, at the following rates
per annum. Where parts of an item of property,
plant and equipment have different useful lives,
the cost or valuation of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis and depreciated separately :

Leasehold land and Over the shorter of

ERZSREBBRAR WX &
EREBZAABEEBEERE
MEEEERTERRERRFit
HERERBMEL 2EEREM
Xo-FABEREMERERVBHBAE
HEERREBRRPXE -

ME - -BERRBZAEERER
ARABEzZAHERATERF
RERAMNERSABRESEREE
BREBEUTH A AERET R
E-U% BERRBEEHD 2
AEREHYEAER - ZEB &
PRBASGESEZCEERD
B mEHsKENNE -

HETHREFT S0FHRIBz

buildings unexpired term of HEFH

lease or 50 years (UBREEAHE)

Leasehold improvements 20% HEMEHEE 20%

Furniture, fixtures and 10% - 20% BH - £ERSZHE 10%—20%
equipment

Motor vehicles 20% AE 20%

The assets’ depreciation methods, asset’s residual
values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over the shorter of their expected useful lives or the
term of the leases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Summary of significant accounting policies
(cont'd)

3.4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont’d)

Leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong are
stated at fair value at the date of valuation less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Fair value is determined by
independent valuations which are performed
periodically. Increases in valuation are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the revaluation reserve. Decreases in valuation
are first offset against increases on earlier valuations
in respect of the same asset and are thereafter
charged to profit or loss. Any subsequent increases
are credited fo profit or loss up fo the amount
previously charged and thereafter to revaluation
reserve.

The gain or loss arising on disposal is determined as
the difference beftween the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably.

3.5 PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

Prepaid land lease payments are up-front
payments to acquire long-term interests in lessee-
occupied properties. The payments are stated at
cost and are amortised over the period of the lease
on a straight line basis to profit or loss.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies 3. TEE5HX (&) i
(cont’d) c
3.6 FINANCIAL ASSETS 6MBEE 5
The Group’s accounting policies for financial assets rEBERMBKERE (RMBARZ 3

other than investments in subsidiaries are classified RERM 2EFBED»RERRE £

into loans and receivables and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss.

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending
on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired and where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

All financial assetfs are recognised when, and
only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular
way purchases of financial assets are recognised on
trade date. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured aft fair value, plus, in the
case of investments not at fair value through profit
or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
expire or are transferred and substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are
reviewed to assess whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. If any such evidence
exists, impairment loss is determined and
recognised based on the classification of the
financial asset.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate and
fransaction cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7 8 % M

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BE_T-TF A= HLFE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies 3. FEZ & ER (&)
(cont'd)

3.6 FINANCIAL ASSETS (cont'd) 6B EE (&)
(ii) # R FE 5 R RS & kP&
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(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
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Financial assets af fair value through profit or loss
included a derivative financial instrument that
is a forward currency contract to hedge ifs risk
associated with foreign currency fluctuations.

Derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date the derivative
confract is enfered info and subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives that are
not designated as hedging instruments are
accounted for as financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Gains
or losses arising from changes in fair value are
taken directly to profit or loss for the year.

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether there is objective evidence that
financial assets are impaired. Objective
evidence of impairment of individual financial
assets includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about one or more
of the following loss events:

BZHBEEE

AEEZBAFEIKRRRE
BRPTEECHBEEEREN
TERITENR-—OHRHEER
AR HENIDEEZRA
BRAEITE P o
MEESBM T ANRERT LT
YERERZAFERR A
RERNVEEBFE -T£T
ATHETAERHEPIAR
TERBRRAFEREZERTE
BARDBMBEEREE - 2
FTESBREENEARAER
BAEESABRERT -

MERERE

RERER, AEEERUKE
EUBEERERAAAZER
ERE EANMEEEZRE
BEXRBEESIEAKREER
BB 4R ULTIEESH
ARBEH

- Significant financial difficulty of the debtor; - EBRALREAMBRE
- A breach of contract, such as a default - BREH  PlumREESER
or delinquency in interest or principal BERFEHAE ;

payments;

- It becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

— Significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies 3. TEEHXE (& i

(cont’d) c

3.6 FINANCIAL ASSETS (cont'd) 3.OMBEE (@) 5

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or (i) B4 -FAE SRR R IE 2 R E e

loss (cont’d) BHBEEE (&) £
Impairment of financial assets (cont'd) MBESEREE)

Loss events in respect of a group of financial
assets include observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from the group of financial
assets. Such observable data includes but not
limited to adverse changes in the payment
status of debtors in the group and, national or
local economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on the assets in the group.

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss on loans and receivables
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’'s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). The
amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss
of the period in which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed to the extent that it does noft result
in a carrying amount of the financial asset
exceeding what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised
at the date the impairment is reversed. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or
loss of the period in which the reversal occurs.

FRZANKEEZERSN
BRERETZAMBEE 2 fhar
ARREARBEEAERD 2
TRBHE  ZESUREHE
BREETRRAEEGEHAZ
FRRAREFAEHEREZE
NEBEzZBERRE B EERR
ZARNEE o

HEEBERBERTERKRER
RARCHBRBEBE  FEE
BeBUZEEREDERMGS
ARBER(TEEEHREELZ
ARFEFR)BEABRAE
(NSRRI AUAFEZER
FMBR)VFRAEREBEMES
LERHBE -BRAERESED
RELEREHEZERRTRE

&
Tare

MEERREBSREERD - M
FRRGEETE LUTEBEIRE
RBEECE-SHEBARBE
ADEBERAZAEEE
HEHBEECRABEFSHERB
fid @ &R EE B I EEDREE
CEREBERAE - ARESHER
EEAEARERRPESD




BBERR A

7o
£

©
EN
pi:
kel
9]
=
£
»
o
&
e}
<]
<
e
o
el
@

Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Summary of significant accounting policies
(cont'd)

3.6 FINANCIAL ASSETS (cont'd)

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (cont’'d)

Impairment of financial assets (cont'd)

Where the recovery of trade receivables
is considered doubftful but not remote, the
impairment losses for doubtful receivables
are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery
of frade receivables is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against
frade receivables directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account in respect of
that receivable are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.

3.7 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The Group’s financial liabilities include interest-
bearing borrowings, trade and other payables
and finance lease liabilities. They are included in
line items in the statement of financial position as
interest-bearing borrowings under current or non-
current liabilities or trade and other payables.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is freated as a derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies 3. TEE5HX (&) i
(cont’d) c
3.7 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (cont'd) 3.7THMBEE(E) 5

(i} Trade and other payables (i) AR R E AT B 7% §
Trade and other payables are recognised EAERREMESERDS E

initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
intferest method.

(i) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value, net of tfransaction costs
incurred. Interest-bearing borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of
fransaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
interest-bearing borrowings using the effective
inferest method.

REDNFEBR  TREKRN
ERFRERBERANTE -

(i) BEEEE

RERERATIELDFE (K
EEEZRGAA)ER - BE
BEERNBHERATE - f7
SRR(MBRXZEAF)EED
BEMERM2ZH  HUER
MEEREEHARBRERT
W o

Interest-bearing borrowings are classified EEBEURBEGBREAA
as current liabilities unless the Group has an R ERNEEERGEERE
unconditional right to defer settlement of the EEREHREZREHEAR
liability for at least twelve months after the St+=@RBIG -
reporting date.

(iii) Finance lease liabilities (i) BEHEE &

Finance lease liabilities are measured aft
initial value less the capital element of lease
repayments (see note 3.14).

3.8 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder of the contract
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within frade and other payables.
Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group's policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any defered income.

MEHEERERANREREN
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3.14) ¢

S8HMBEREN

BEERESNEBRTA(TERA)
ARBHNEEAREEERARRE
REEBTIEZHRAXNEHNE
MEZBAE  GFBAENMEE

REZEH -

WAREELEBER  BER2ZD
FEANSTREXREMBEASRRR
BRARELEWRA - SLEHERE W
FEECREERERRZEEE
ZAEEBRER o i BRI E
WARE - BN S R RIEE WA B
M RERRERMX o




BBERR A

o
£

©
EN
pi:
kel
9]
=
£
»
o
&
e}
<]
<
e
o
el
@

Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Summary of significant accounting policies
(cont'd)

3.8 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS (cont'd)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised if and when it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
Group under the guarantee and the amount of
that claim on the Group is expected to exceed
the current carrying amount i.e. the amount initially
recognised less accumulated amortisation, where
appropriate.

3.9 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at
bank and in hand and short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject o
an insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.10REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably and on the following basis:

Sale of goods is recognised on fransfer of risks and
rewards of ownership, which generally coincides
with time when the goods are delivered to
customers and title has been passed.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

3.11 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in the currency of Hong Kong dollars
(HK$), which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

B A% R M

For the year ended 31 March 2010
HE_T-TF-A=1-HLFE
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies 3. TEE5HX (&) i
(cont’d) z
3.11 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION (cont’d) AN HNEIRE () 5
Foreign currency transactions are translated NERZYRRFEBZRITER 5

into the functional currency using the exchange BEANREE HLERSEE £

rates prevailing at the date of the tfransactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the seftlement of such transactions and from
the franslation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

On consolidation, the results and financial posifion
of all the Group entities that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
(“foreign operations”) are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the reporting date;

(b) income and expenses for each profit or loss are
tfranslated at average exchange rates;

(c) all resulting exchange differences arising
from the above translation and exchange
differences arising from a monetary item
that forms part of the Group’s net investment
in a foreign operation are recognised as a
separate component of equity and recognised
in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on disposal of foreign operations.

3.12INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs of
purchase and, where applicable, other costs that
have been incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition, is calculated
using the weighted average cost method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Summary of significant accounting policies
(cont'd)

3.13IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

At each reporting date, the Group reviews internal
and external sources of information to determine
whether its property, plant and equipment, prepaid
land lease payments and investment in subsidiaries
have suffered an impairment loss or impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may
be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated,
based on the higher of its fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
smallest group of assets that generates cash flows
independently (i.e. cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised as an expense immediately, except
where the relevant asset is carried at valuation
in which case the impairment loss is freated as a
revaluation decrease.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating
unit that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately, except where the relevant assets is
carried at valuation, in which case the reversal of
impairment loss is freated as a revaluation increase.

B % R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BE_T-TF A= HLFE
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies 3. EZ & BUR (&) i
(cont’d) c
3.14LEASES 3.4 E 5
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever REERz2BADHRERKERY 5

the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the EEZETABEAZELN 95 AR £

risks and rewards of ownership fo the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised
as assets of the Group at the lower of the fair value
of the leased assets and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding
liability to the lessor is included in the statement
of financial position as finance lease obligation.
Finance charges, which represent the difference
between the total leasing commitments and the
fair value of the assets acquired, are charged to
profit or loss over the term of the relevant lease so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of charge on
the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period.

Rentals payables under operatfing leases are
charged to profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Lease
incentives are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the net consideration agreed for
the use of the leased asset. Contingent rentals are
recognised as expenses in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.

3.15EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Defined conftribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined
contribution retirement scheme are recognised as
an expense in profit or loss as incurred. The assets of
the scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund.

3.16INCOME TAX

The charge for current income tax is based on the
results for the year as adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Summary of significant accounting policies
(cont'd)

3.16INCOME TAX (cont'd)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the reporting date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, if the deferred tax arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a fransaction
other than a business combination that at the time
of the fransaction affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted
for.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able fo
confrol the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is recovered or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, tax losses and credits can
be utilised.

3.17 RELATED PARTIES

For the purposes of these financial statements, a
party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the Group or exercise significant influence over
the Group in making financial and operating
policy decisions, or has joint confrol over the
Group;

(o) the Group and the party are subject to
common confrol;

(c) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;

B % R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BE_T-TF A= HLFE
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies 3. TEE5HX (&) |
(cont’d) c
3.17RELATED PARTIES (cont'd) 3.I7EEAL(E) 5
(d) the party is a member of key management (d) ZATHBEREEHER LT Z g
personnel of the Group or the Group's parent, TEEEBEERERZBRAZ 2

or a close family member of such an individual,
or is an entity under the confrol, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals;

(e) the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (a) oris an entity under the
conftrol, joint control or significant influence of
such individuals; or

(f) the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or of any entity that is a related party of
the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that individual in
their dealings with the entity.

3.18 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group's
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group's major service lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable
segments:

Wholesales  — imporfing and wholesale of
architectural builders hardware,
bathroom, kitchen collections and
furniture to dealers, fraditional
hardware stores, contractors and
property developers.

Retails — sale of architectural builders
hardware, bathroom, kitchen
collections and furniture through
the Group'’s retail outlets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Summary of significant accounting policies
(cont'd)

3.18 SEGMENT REPORTING (cont'd)

Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of the service lines requires
different resources as well as marketing
approaches. All inter-segment transfers are carried
out at arms length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs, except that:

e finance costs
e jncome tax

e corporate income and expenses which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of
any operating segment

are not included in arriving at the operating results
of the operating segment.

Segment assets include all assets but prepaid land
lease payments, deferred tax assets and corporate
assets which are not directly attributable to the
business activities of any operating segment are
not allocated to a segment, which primarily applies
to the Group's headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred ftax liabilities
and corporate liabilities which are not directly
atftributable to the business activities of any
operating segment and are not allocated to a
segment. These include deferred tax liabilities
attributable to building.

3.1

B % R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2010
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4. Significant accounting judgements and

estimates

In the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies which are described in note 3 to the financial
statements, the management makes various estimates
based on past experience, future expectations and
other information.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions fo accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods. The key sources affect the amount recognised
in.the financial information as disclosed below.

4.1 ALLOWANCE FOR BAD-AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS

The provisioning policy for bad and doubtful
debts of the Group is based on the evaluation
of collectability of the accounts receivables. A
considerable amount of judgment is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the current creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each customer.
If the financial conditions of these customers were
to deteriorate and result in an impairment of their
ability o make payments, additional allowance will
be required. At 31 March 2010, the carrying amount
of receivables affer provision for impairment
amounted to HK$94,686,000 (2009: HK$66,801,000).

4.2 ALLOWANCE FOR INVENTORIES

In deftermining the amount of allowance required
for obsolete and slow-moving inventories,
the Group would evaluate ageing analysis of
inventories and compare the carrying value of
inventories to their respective net realisable values.
A considerable amount of judgement is required
in determining such allowance. If conditions which
have an impact on the net realisable value of
inventories deteriorate, additional allowances may
be required.

4.

BT B HH R

RERBBERERAMIIFAAEEE
TERE  EEERBBEER KX
TR R 2 A &R AETFAE

R RERBREESEEN  WE
2B EFEZHB  ABITRZ
HMEAER - WETHRERRRYM
HESE  ARETRARRAESIEET
B - UTAFENBERNRNZER S
BeIERE:

1 RIBREBE

AEERTRBERRAT Y E 4
Al FEZERURNARRE
RENFTEFHAREHNE  HEH
BEREFzBREERBAERR
BELi dAKEEFMBERR
A= HIZENRED  BIA
REBENER -R-ZFT-FF=A
=t-0 NERBEEROHERER
794,686, 0008 T(=Z2BFAF :
66,801,000 T) °

42FERE

BEBRRFHEFERAFL BB
THE AEERNFEZRED
o RbkBEEZREAEREAE
ZUSHEE BEUBETER
HAEHE - MY EFE2TER
BEZMREEL TEFEHRIME
e

T-TFFH

o
o
~
=
o
Q
2
)
=)
c
c
[e]




=
IS
3
=
o
E
P
[}
\c
EN
pi:
kel
@
=
£
»
o
&
e}
<]
<
j=
o
el
@

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. Significant accounting judgements and
estimates (cont'd)

4.3 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
tax losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.
Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed
and additfional deferred tax assets are recognised
if it becomes probable that future taxable profits
will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

5. Turnover and other income

Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods, net
of discounts and returns. Turnover and other income
recognised during the year are as follows:

Turnover BEXE
Sale of goods EmEE
Other income Htilg &
Interest income F B A
Others Hity

B % & M
For the year ended 31 March 2010
BE_Z-ZF=A=+—HItFE

B2 E HE RS (@)

JELERIEEE

EERBEERAEZHRBERTA
DEERRBERBEN 28040 - &
SEEHEEEBE I AREEE
CERHE  FERBEEMERK
RERBRENRRRRBZH - &
BEz2MGAECHER  MELR
BERABEN  BEINELHEEE
HRIEHBREE -

EXRBREMNKE

EXREEmRRERTERER -
FRERCEXERAMBENT ¢

2010 2009
—2F ZBENE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TERT
446,910 361,102
69 379

738 1,951

807 2,330

447,717 363,432




Al
.

E»..\T\.D

=
M
1202
|
1002
6. Segment information 6. DEER Y
The executive directors have identified the Group's WEI I8 HITEZALAEEZE S
two service lines as operating segments as further BENHEDAME - E
described in Note 3.18. 2
These operating segments are monitored and strategic AEBTHRAZSLEEII  YRE g
decisions are made on the basis of adjusted segment ABCEEDHDEEF TR ME - °
operating results.
2010
ot 2l -3
Wholesale Retail Total
g1 28 &t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FHET FHET THET
Revenue I &
From external customers HHNE P W a 363,654 83,256 446,910
From other segments Hth 2= 39,127 - 39,127
Reportable segment revenue AERZABWRE 402,781 83,256 486,037
Reportable segment profit AERZSBEZET 57,470 8,578 66,048
Bank interest income AEWA 33 - 33
Depreciation and amortisation FUBEEFTEREH
of non-financial assets 1,711 3,542 5,253
Impairment of trade receivables  FEW R RE 209 - 209
Write off of other receivables H 1t FE 2 K 78 B AR 819 - 819
Write down of inventories to FERMRZTERFE
net realisable value 3,621 - 3,621
Reportable segment assets AEBZABEE 223,872 27,868 251,740
Additions to non-current segment HREREB I BEEZRE
assets during the year 1,350 5,549 6,899

Reportable segment liabilities EBZABAR 38,406 142 38,548
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7 8 % M

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BE_T-TF-A=-T-HLFE

6. Segment information (cont’d)

Revenue
From external customers
From other segments

Reportable segment revenue

Reportable segment profit

Bank interest income
Depreciation and amortisation
of non-financial assets
Impairment of trade receivables
Write down of inventories to
net realisable value
Reversal of write down of
inventories
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Reportable segment assets
Addifions to non-current segment

assets during the year

Reportable segment liabilities

&
HiNEF s
Hit a8

ERZ S B
TEHRZSBEZRN

FE WA
FUBEEMERME

& WS8R R R
FEMAETZEFE

FEMAMZEEHFEER

HEWE - BE - RBERE

TERZABRE

HAERB T MEEZRE

TEHZABAR

o
]Jvlll;
m
3

2009
-
Wholesale Retail Total
#t 2 & a5

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THERT
277,007 84,095 361,102
37,573 - 37,573
314,580 84,095 398,675
36,736 11,103 47,839
74 - 74

1,565 3,702 5,267
118 - 118
5,403 - 5,403
(2,069) - (2,069)
(11) - (11)
179,854 19,431 199,285
657 3,512 4,169
28,483 1,742 30,225



6. Segment information (cont'd) 6. HER (&)
The totals presented for the Group's operating TEHz KL Bt ERNEAEEE
segments reconcile to the Group's key financial figures T REEEHROT ¢
as presented in the financial statements as follows:
2010 2009
—E-E§ b %3
HKS$'000 HK$’'000
FTHERT TART
Reportable segment revenues AER 22 MU= 486,037 398,675
Elimination of inter segment revenues 4 B U % 1% % (39,127) (37,573)
Group revenues SEKS 446,910 361,102
Reportable segment profit AER D BW 66,048 47,839
Unallocated corporate income RPBBBREERR 36 305
Revaluation deficit of building MEE LR E (115) (112)
Unallocated corporate expenses AP BE2RBREXER (15,612) (15,712)
Finance costs HHER (653) (1.758)
Profit before income tax FRErBMaTas 49,704 30,562
Reportable segment assets TEHRz D BEE 251,740 199,285
Deferred tax assets EEMEBEEE 1,570 1,627
Prepaid land lease payments B HERE 29,911 30,534
Other corporate assets HhBBREEEE 60,544 50,070
Group assets SEEE 343,765 281,516
Reportable segment liabilities TEHzHMBEE 38,548 30,225
Deferred tax liabilities BIEEE 4,760 3,853
Interest-bearing borrowings BEBE 60,865 44,852
Other corporate liabilities Htt@FREEEE 4,390 3,855
Group liabilities SERE 108,563 82,785
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION R BREHNER
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
HIERME FRBEE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-TF C"ZTINF ZEB-BFE C—ZTENF
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$’'000
THERT THERT THER TART
Hong Kong (domicile) EB(EEEENY) 372,086 355,882 81,815 76,124
Mainland China A A B 74,824 5,220 741 144

Total &% 446,910 361,102 82,556 76,268
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Notes to the Financial Statements

6. Segment information (cont’d)

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION (cont'd)

The Company is an investment holding company
incorporated in Cayman Islands where the Group does
not have any activities, the Group has the maijority
of its operations and workforce in Hong Kong, and
therefore, Hong Kong is considered as the Group's
country of domicile for the purpose of the disclosures as
required by HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”.

The geographical location of customers is based on
the locatfion at which the services were provided or
the goods delivered. The geographical location of the
non-current assets is based on the physical location of
the asset.

During the year, HK$111,208,000 or 25% of the Group'’s
revenues depended on a single customer.

At the reporting date, 35% of the Group's trade
receivables was due from this customer.

. Profit before income tax

This is stated after charging/(crediting):

B A% R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BE_T-TF A= HLFE

. DERE R ()

REZINER (&)

ARARFAEHEEM  TEXBAR
EER -AEBETEXBEREIRNE
B BEAURBEEBEFERCEED
MWBEERTE AEBECIELEXRMHSD
'R

EFuEBUERBERURBIARGTER
FENEME  FRBEEZ2HENVE
AP RZEECERNE -

i » 111,208,000 B ThykzREE
—BF  HERAEBAWZE225% °
RBER  ZEFZRBERRERER
B IRFI5% o

R ER AR R

WIE B MK, (FFA) THREE

2010 2009
—Z-ZF “EENE
HKS$’'000 HK$'000
TER THET
Auditors’ remuneration R & 640 560
Cost of inventories recognised FEHEAK
as expense 279,824 221,973
Depreciation wE 6,273 6,178
Amortisation of prepaid land lease  Fa{t L i & = # 623 623
Net foreign exchange gain 5 I AFER (12) (1,583)
Gain on disposal on property, plant  HEY%  BERRERZ
and equipment - (11)
Operating lease charges inrespect #BFEBHEXH
of land and building 32,117 27,534
Provision for inventories, included B AFERERZRFFERE
in cost of sales 3,621 3,334
Provision for impairment of trade & s B ORI (B
receivables 209 118
Reversal of provision for doubtful RIRZEfE %
debt - (3)
Write off of other receivables L th & Ut 5% 18 Hif B 819

Revaluation deficit of building

MEELRE 115

112



8. Finance costs

Interest charges on:
Bank loans and overdrafts
—wholly repayable within five years
—not wholly repayable within
five years
Finance charges on obligations
under finance lease

9. Employee benefit expense

Salaries and allowances, including
directors” emoluments (Note 10)

Contributions to defined
contribution plans

E\A\TL.D

D o
p— AT A
1EE\

8. WHEHM
2010 2009
o
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TR F 7
B
RARRRES
- LFRE2HEE 517 1,425
-FALERRHME
129 323
RAHEEEAS
7 10
653 1,758
9. BI®AXH
2010 2009
—B-8% C-BINE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR F#%
FLREA
BREESHE (KE10) 39.614 38,235
RR N B HR
1,215 1,224
40,829

39,459
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7 8 % M

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BE_T-TF-A=-T-HLFE

10.Directors’ and Senior Management's 10.EERSREBEAEZHE
emoluments

(A) DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (A)ESHE
The aggregate amount of emoluments received or FRAREECURER M AH
receivable by the directors of the Company are as wE
follows:
2010 —Z-%5
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme
fees inkind  contribution Total
HeR H-3 38
Exns HtF & 4 &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FTET FET FERT FET
Executive directors HITES
TSE Sun Fat, Henry 3 #E - 1,102 12 1,114
TSE Sun Po, Tony HEE - 1,168 12 1,180
LAU Shiu Sun 2@ - 1,002 12 1,014
YICK Kai Chung 5 R - 1,197 12 1,209
FUNG Cheuk Hang, Jackie 5 e - 1,848 - 1,848
TSE Hon Kit, Kevin BB - 648 12 660

Independent non-executive BYFHTES

directors

LEUNG Kwong Kin, J. P. RRBAF#HL 108 - - 108
WONG Wah, Dominic =E 108 - - 108
WAN Sze Chung o SR 80 - - 80

296 6,965 60 7,321
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10.Directors’ and Senior Management's 10.EERaREBAEZHE @) i
emoluments (cont'd) c
(A) DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (cont'd) (A)EEME (&) 5
2009 ZEENE 3
Salaries, °
allowances  Refirement
Directors’  and benefits scheme
fees inkind  confribution Total
ek RIRETE
EEH0e H 1t Fl & H= &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TExT TExT TExT
Executive Directors HITES
TSE Sun Fat, Henry HEE - 952 12 964
TSE Sun Po, Tony BB - 1,018 12 1,030
LAU Shiu Sun 245 = 952 12 964
YICK Kai Chung SRR = 847 12 859
FUNG Cheuk Hang, Jackie 5 12 - 1,391 2 1,393
TSE Hon Kit, Kevin* HEGE - 375 7 382
TSE Sun Lung, Alan* e - 370 5 375
Independent Non-executive BYFHITES
Directors
LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.P. RREAF#HL 108 - - 108
WONG Wah, Dominic B 108 - - 108
WAN Sze Chung syl 80 - - 80
296 5,905 62 6,263
*  Retired on 8 September 2008 L RZEENFAANRRE
#  Appointed on 8 September 2008 iORZBEENFAANAERE
No director has waived or agreed to waive their RBE-_Z-ZTER-_ZFFNEF=
emoluments in respect of the years ended 31 A=Z+T-—HLEEE LUB/ESHK

March 2010 and 2009. RARERRKEZME -
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Notes to the Financ

lal Statements
B 36 8 & K i

For the year ended 31 March 2010

BE_T-TEZA-+—HUIFE

10.Directors’ and Senior Management's 10.EERSREBAEZHE @)

emoluments (cont'd)
(B) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (B)

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include three (2009:
four) directors whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis presented above. The emoluments
of the remaining two (2009: one) individual are as
follows:

Basic salaries and allowances BEXRFERER
Retirement scheme conftributions B Kzt &%

The emoluments are within WeENFTHER :
the following bands:

HK$Nil - HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 T A T
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 T E1,500,000/ 7t

TURSHMAL
AEBRAFERNRUGSHMA
Tt BRE=F%(ZZETNLE . DTRB)
EE O ZEScHMECRBA LR
ZANMA - HB-_F(ZEZNF .
—ZIALZMEWT -

2010 2009
—e-8%  -TIAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FRE FE7
2,652 1,142

24 12

2,676 1,154

Number of individuals

AR
2010 2009
—E-8% C—TThE
2 1
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11.Income tax expense 1. FrEREX !
(A) Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of (ABERBMERDRAFEE 25 2
16.5% (2009: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable FERBEBENZ165%(ZFEFH 5
profits for the year. The income tax provision in FL165%) 2MEFE - R 2
respect of operations in the People's Republic of EANRERMBE([HE])REBIHNE 3
China (“PRC”) and overseas is calculated at the BeRBRIDUER 2T ER 5
applicable tax rates on the estimated assessable BafEERRLiERERZH
profits for the year based on existing legislation, ERBBBETEN  REREDH
interpretations and practices in respect thereof. mat& o
2010 2009
—Z-%5 —EENF
HKS'000 HK$’'000
THET THET
Current tax FEERE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BERMEH
Current year REE 6,464 5,422
Over provision in prior year T EBERE (267) -
6,197 5,422
Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax H B & %55
Current year KEE 2,403 186
8,600 5,608
Deferred taxation (Note 24) BRI (P EE24) 57 (52)

Tax expense for the year FEERAXH 8,657 5,556
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Bt 7 8 % M

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BE_T-TF-A=-T-HLFE

11.Income tax expense (cont'd)
(B) RECONCILIATION OF TAX EXPENSE

1. MBI X (&)
(B) B X 2 ¥ IR

= The Group
3 340
E 2010 2009
= —Z-Zf “ZTRE
3 HK$’000 HK$’000
§ FTHET THET
g Profit before income tax BRET SR ADER 49,704 30,562
Income tax at Hong Kong FBHBREBMENE16.5%
Profits Tax rate of 16.5% (ZBZ2AE 1 16.5%)5tE
(2009: 16.5%) 8,201 5,043
Overprovision in prior year FEBERE (267) =
Tax exempt revenue EA B AR A (358) (261)
Non-deductible expenses TAERBIENNE R 303 531
Utilisation of previously unrecognised  {& F LAAT & E R B 52
tax losses HEEE (256) (46)
Unrecognised temporary differences KRz EiF =5 (5) (46)
Unrecognised tax losses AERZRERE 139 240
Effect on opening deferred tax HETAUEYZIELERE
balances resulting from reduction HEHoTE

in tax rate = 92
Effect of different tax rate of REBRZHERARRNERE

PRC subsidiaries ERy¥E 817 42
Others Hth 83 (39)
Tax expense for the year FEEREAXH 8,657 5,556

The amount of tax relating to each component of EREM2EWEERT 2 2B\

other comprehensive income can be summarised THET :
as follows:
2010 2009
—B-85 “EENE
Before Netof  Before Net of
tax Tax tax fax Tax fax

RIRW REXH BRR& BREH HEXH B
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#xT TH#RT THERT TEx TEx TEx
Exchange gain on franslafion of financial & M 2 7
statements of foreign operations HBBRENEREER
Surplus on revaluation of properties MEBHNE
held for own use 6400  (907) 5493 3387 . (219) 3168

Hit2E W 6,726 (?07) 5819 3,405 (219) 3,186

326 = 326 18 = 18

Other comprehensive income
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12.Profit attributable to equity holders of the . 12. "RQA TR AKEE AEILEF L
Company c
The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders AARARAREE AEMEEF237,000% é
of the Company includes a profit of HK$237,000 (2009: T(ZEZNF  736,00087m) > A E 2
HK$736,000) which has been dealt with in the financial RALABBE-Z2-ZEF=ZF=+—-H S
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 HFERBERRANEE - 5
March 2010.
13.Dividends 13. R E
(A) DIVIDENDS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE YEAR (A)IIARFEZRE
2010 2009
—E-Z% —EENE
HKS$'000 HK$'000
TER TR
Interim dividend of HK 2 cents HHEIR E SR 2B
(2009: HK1 cent) per share (ZZZNEF 1 13E4) 4,620 2,310
Special interim dividend of HRIFEREER.5EAL
HK 1.5 cents (2009: nil) (Z22RF &) (W)
per share (Note) 3,465 -
Proposed final dividend of BRAHREER3.0BM
HK 3 cents (2009: HK2.5 cents) (ZZZNF : 2.5%81) (&)
per share (Note) 6,930 5,775
15,015 8,085
Note: A special interim dividend of HK1.5 cents (2009: nil) MieE: BAFHBRESRISBLR=F—
per share amounting to HK$3,445,000 have been paid EFRA-HRBE(ZZEZAE:
on 1 June 2010. A final dividend of HK3.0cents (2009: ) BRI ER B 53,465,000
HK2.5cents) per share amounting to HK$6,930,000 (2009: Br e RBREB  EZGZRER
HK$5,775,000) have been proposed by the directors RERABREABRIOBM(=F
after the reporting date. The proposed dividends are not ThRE:2581M) ARBERES
accounted for until it has been approved at the annual 56,930,000 (=FFNEF :
general meeting. 5,775,000/ )  ZEIRAHREE
RBRREFASEEBAHEAR -
(B) DIVIDENDS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE PREVIOUS B)IAR—FEZRE RAFE
FINANCIAL YEAR; APPROVED AND PAID DURING THE BB Rk E
YEAR
2010 2009
—E-2% —EENF
HKS'000 HK$'000
TER TET
Final dividend in respect of BE-A=+—HLAERBRE
the previous financial year, FR2.581
of HK2.5 cents per ordinary (ZZZNE : 58)

share (2009: HK5 cents) 5,775 10,500
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Notes to the Financial Statements

14.Earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the Group's profit for the year of HK$41,047,000
(2009: HK$25,006,000) and on the outstanding number
of 231,000,000 shares in issue (2009: 231,000,000 shares)

during the year.

Diluted earnings per share was not disclosed as there
were no potential ordinary shares in existence for the

years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009.

15.Property, plant and equipment

B % & WA
For the year ended 31 March 2010
BE_T-TF-A=1T-HLFE

14. BRR&EF

BREXZEFNDRBEAFEFELEH
A 41,047,000 T(Z BB AF :
25,006,000 BT) R RFERNC BTE
BRR231,000,000 R E(ZEZNF :
231,000,000 ) °

HREBE-SENFR-F-FF=A
SH-PRLFEYEEETHELER
B BRESREBTEN

15. 9%  MENKE

THE GROUP KE
Land and
buildings Land and
under buildings
long-term under
leases in long-term Furniture,
Hong Kong leases in Building Leasehold = fixtures and Motor
(Note (a)) the PRC (Note (b)) improvements equipment vehicle Total
RERY
HAREEZ RERH
THREF HARPEZ L kS A &’
(Mi(a)) THREF (MaE(b)) PEREE KERSRG RE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET THET THET THET TET
At 31 March 2008 RZZBENE
=R=+-H
Cost KA - 1,779 - 34,764 15,130 1,634 53,307
Valuation fhE 24,400 - - - - - 24,400
Accumulated ZithE
depreciation = (190) = (22,622) (13,342) (1,499) (37,653)
Nef book amount EEFE 24,400 1,589 - 12,142 1,788 135 40,054
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15.Property, plant and equipment (cont'd) 15. 9%  RERHZE®E) i
o
THE GROUP rE g
Land and q%
buildings Land and _;
under buildings 2
long-term under 5
leases in long-term Furniture,
Hong Kong leases in Building Leasehold fixtures and Motor
(Note (a)) the PRC (Note (b)) improvements equipment vehicle Total
RERM
HOREEL RERY
TiHREF BEHIRPEZ BF¥ HE 1 1’0
(M (a)) TiREF (M (b)) REE KEREM RE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL THET THET THET TEL THEL THET
Net book value REFE
At 1 April 2008 RZZZENEMA-A 24,400 1,589 - 12,142 1,788 135 40,054
Additions HiE - - 4,414 3,531 434 204 8,583
Revaluation By 3,387 - (112) - - - 3,275
Depreciation & (787) (36) (88) (4,393) (801) (73) (6,178)
At 31 March 2009 RZZBENE
=A=+-H 27,000 1,553 4214 11,280 1,421 266 45,734
At 31'March 2009 RZZENE
= A=t —H
Cost B - 1,779 - 38,295 15,564 1,710 57,348
Valuation i 27,000 - 4214 - - - 31214
Accumulated ZiHE
depreciation & (226) = (27,015 (14,143 (1,444) (42,828)
Net book amount REFE 27,000 1,553 4,214 11,280 1,421 266 45,734
Net book value REEE
At 1 April 2009 RZZEZREMA—-H 27,000 1,553 4214 11,280 1,421 266 45,734
Acquisition of KB AR
subsidiary - - - 7 89 - 89
Additions Eid = = - 5,405 1,405 - 6,810
Revaluation B 6,400 - (115) - - - 6,285
Depreciation e (900) (35) (89) (4.234) (940) (79) (6.273)
At 31 March 2010 RZS-Z%
=ZR=+-H 32,500 1,518 4,014 12,451 1,975 187 52,645
At 31 March 2010 R-S-Z%
=RA=+-H
Cost BA = 1,779 = 43,700 17,058 1,710 64,247
Valuation 1A 32,500 - 4014 - - - 36,514
Accumulated ZitiE
depreciation - (261) - (31,249) (15,083) (1,523) (48,116)

Net book amount BERE 32,500 1,518 4,014 12,451 1.975 187 52,645
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Notes to the Financial Statements

15.Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)
THE GROUP

(A) The leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong

were revalued by A.G. Wilkinson & Associates, an
independent firm of professional valuers, on 31
March 2010 which was based on recent market
tfransactions and were then adjusted for specific
conditions relating to the land and buildings.

The carrying amount of the leasehold land
and buildings in Hong Kong would have been
approximately HK$3,145,000 (2009: HK$3,226,000)
had they been stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Bank borrowing is secured on building for
the carrying amount of HK$4,014,000 (2009:
HK$4,214,000).

The buildings were revalued by A.G. Wilkinson &
Associates, an independent firm of professional
valuers, on 31 March 2010 which was based on
recent market transactions and were then adjusted
for specific conditions relating to the land and
buildings. The carrying amount of the building
in Hong Kong would have been approximately
HK$4,239,000 (2009: HK$4,326,000) had they been
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

(C) The carrying amount of the Group's property, plant

and equipment includes an amount of HK$60,000
(2009: HK$107,000) in respect of assets held under
finance leases.

16.Prepaid land lease payments

Opening net carrying amount HYREFE
Additions Mt wHEEER
Amortisation FEHE
Closing net carrying amount HARREFE

B % R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BE_T-TF-A=-T-HLFE

15. % MENREE)
AEE

ARBEBZHEEIHREFR-Z
—ZF=-A=+-HEHABYE
XEEMERCAETETER
REMBERES( -

MEELtHRBFERARERR
AMERBEERAH3,145000
BR(ZZFZTNEF : 3,226,000%
JT) e

(B) MITIEE UM EEERR WX
BREER40140008 T (=%
ZNE 14,214,00087x) °

BEVEXRMEMEREHNEST
BhERREREEENEMR
RZE-Z2F=ZRA=1+—H " %
MEZE R A RER R 5 E KR
BEEERKN4,239,0008 (=
ZENEF 14,326,00087) °

(C)AEBzZYE BERRER
HEEEL0,0008BT(=Z8FH
F£:107,0008) 5WMERE
ZHMBEEZEE °

16. FEF LB EFIE

The Group
$5E

2010 2009
—Z-EF —EENF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
THER FET
30,534 -
- 31,157
(623) (623)

29,911 30,534
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16.Prepaid land lease payments (cont'd) 16. FA Tt & 7B (&) :
The Group g
r 3 | 5
2010 2009 e
t- Bt 3:3 —ETAF E
HKS'000 HK$'000 g
FET FTERx
The net book value are analysed IREFEZ D
as follows:

Situated in Hong Kong held under —~ REWEGLRNE S -

long-term leases TURBBAFRAEE 29,911 30,534
The amount to be amortised within the next twelve RBERBRZART=ER  HHEER
months after the reporting date was HK$623,000 (2009: 623,000 T (ZZFNF : 623,000
HK$623,000). BT o
Interest-bearing borrowings are secured on the BEREEURANIEEREREKR §
prepaid land lease payments of HK$29,911,000 (2009: BHEHENREEA29,911,0008 T (=
HK$30,534,000) (Note 23). BERE : 30,534,000 7) (HEE23) o

17.Interests in subsidiaries 17. M B AR ESR
2010 2009
—Z-2F C—ZThE
HKS$’000 HK$'000
FET THERT
Unlisted shares, at cost ELmRH - RRE 90,917 90,917
Details of the major subsidiaries at 31 March 2010 are as RZEBE-ZF=ZA=Z+-HZTEWNE
follows : NAERWMT
Place of Issued and fully paid up
incorporation/ share capital/ Equity interest Principal activities
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital Legal structure held and place of operation
BRTRMERE/
HEAREH EMGIEE W EREF HBERER BERFHEE TEXBERERDE
Interest held directly:
GRS :
E. Bon (BVI) Holdings British Virgin Islands 50,000 ordinary shares of Company with limited 100% Investment holding
Limited RERLEE Us$1 each liabilities in Hong Kong
50,000 RERI X2 EBR BREERRA REBFREER
Interests held indirectly:
HERTRE
Asia Bon Company Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of Company-with limited 100% Property holding
ERENEEERBRLA BE HK$1,000 each liabilities in Hong Kong
100881k 1,0008 T2 EER BRERLA REBENERE
E. Bon Building Materials Hong Kong 6,000 ordinary shares of Company with limited 100% Importing and sale of
Company Limited BB HK$1,000 each liabilities architectural builders
RATRENHERLR 6,000REHR1 0008 EBR ABREALR hardware and bathroom
collections in Hong Kong
REBEORHERELLR

BARE




Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7 8 % M

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BE-_T-TF=-A=+—HILFE

(=3
« . . s,
= 17.Interests in subsidiaries (cont'd) 17. B2 B = (@)
f'f Place of Issued and fully paid up
= incorporation/ share capital/ Equity interest Principal activities
® Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital Legal structure held and place of operation
£ BRITRBERSE/
3 i MNGE L EREIEE W% BRREF EERE BERFEE FTEXBRERME
?é
E, Interest held indirectly: (cont'd)
£ MEGAESR : (8)
©
= Right Century Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares of Company with limited 100% Retail of bathroom
S BHERAA ) HK$1 each liabilities accessories and decoration
¢ 1,000RER BrzEER BEREFAH materials in Hong Kong
REBEERERAREHHE
Sunny Building and Hong Kong 6,000 ordinary shares of Company with limited 100% Retail of architectural
Decoration Materials B HK$1,000 each liabilities builders hardware and
Company Limited 6,000RBHR1,0008T2EBR BREELA bathroom collections
FHESHHERIAERAR in Hong Kong
REBBERENERGARE
Shanghai Tech Pro PRC US$300,000 Wholly foreign owned 100% Importing and sale of
International Trading HE 300,000% 7 enterprise architectural builders
Company Ltd. 2HELE hardware and bathroom

LEBRERESERAA

Twinwood Venture Limited

British Virgin Islands

1 ordinary share of US$1 each Company with limited

100%

collections in the PRC
RAEEORHEERERIER
ERRE

Investment holding

AREZEE IRERIZTEBR liabilities in Hong Kong
BRERAAR REBEREER
H20 (Pro) Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Company with limited 100% Importing and sale of
KZRERAR BB 2BERI BT BER liabilities bathroom collections
EREEAH in Hong Kong
REBEORHEEGARE

Massford Holdings Limited

British Virgin Islands

1 ordinary share of US$1 each Company with limited

100%

Investment holding

RERZHEE IRERI ZEnzEBR liabilities in Hong Kong
BRERLA REBEREER
Techpro Trading Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares of Company with limited 100% Importing and sale of
ERENESERAF 3 HK$1 each liabilities architectural builders
1,000RER 1 BTz EER BREEAH hardware
REBEORHERERS
Massford (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of Company with limited 100% Supplying architectural
= (BB)ERLA BB HK$1 each liabilities builders hardware and
10,000 R 1 BTz EER EREFAH bathroom collections
for property development
in Hong Kong
REBHERERCRERRE
TUXERER
Bonco Ironmongery Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of Company with limited 100% Importing and sale of
RELEENERAT & HK$1 each liabilities architectural builders
10,000RER 1 BTz EER EREEAH hardware in Hong Kong
REBEORFEEREDS
Kitchen (Pro) Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares of Company with limited 100% Importing and sale of
BZRERAA 3 HK$1 each liabilities kitchen fittings

1,000RBR1 BT 2 EBR

BREELH

in Hong Kong
REBEORHERERE



®

THFF

—F -

17 Interests in subsidiaries (cont'd) 17. M B ARIRER &)

o

Place of Issued and fully paid up IS

incorporation/ share capital/ Equity interest Principal activities 2

Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital Legal structure held and place of operation g
BRITRBERE o

HELRRR EMGIEER HE BEREF EERH EERFER TERBRERBY E
g

[0}

Interest held indirectly: (cont'd)

HEgkalEa : (/)

D.L.Y: Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of Company with limited 100% Handling of the human
E HK$100 each liabilities resources planning and
JRBRIOBLZEER BERERLA development activities
of the Group
REASREANERSE
Sanfield Properties Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares-of HK$1-each Company with limited 100% Property holding in the PRC
REEXERARA i 2BERIET2EBR liabilities REEENERE
BRERAT
Tech Pro (China) Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Company with limited 100% Investment holding
BR(ME)ERAT i IRERI B2 EBR liabilities in the PRC
BRERAAT RAREEREER
Bonlex Properties Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of Company with limited 100% Property holding in the PRC
ARNEXARLT BB HK$1 each liabilities ReBFNERE
10,000RER1ETZEER BREELR
Shanghai Techpro Interior PRC RMB5,000,000 Wholly foreign owned 100% Undertaking interior
Decoration Co., Ltd. HE 5,000,000A R ¥ enterprise decoration and project
LEEREREHERAR EHELE management for property
developmenT in the PRC
RHREREZ R R REHRE
MIA Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 each Company with limited 100% Importing and sale of
B IRERIET2EBR liabilities architectural builders

18.Due.from/(to).subsidiaries

EREEAT

hardware in Hong Kong
REREORHERERE

18 W, (19) M B2 ) 2 ;IR

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and ZHEAREAR BRAEREZBHER

repayable on demand.
19.Inventories 19. 78

2010 2009

—Z—-ZF “EENF

HKS'000 HK$'000

THET TET

Finished goods EHm 84,742 73,469
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% 20.Trade and other receivables 20. F& Us BR SR H i B WK IE
= Details of the trade and other receivables as at 31 BEZ-_ZT-ZF=ZA=+-HEWER
if March 2010 are listed below : RHEMEKREEMNT !
3 The Group Company
E *%&Mm e I
8 2010 2009 2010 2009
° “2-BF "TTHF "P-¥F _TTNE
s HKS’000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
o TERT FTART THET TET
Trade receivables JE s B 3R 95,909 67,815 - =
Less: provision for doubtful & : REEEE
debts (1,223)  (1,014) - -

94,686 66,801 - =
Other receivables, deposits  HtiEKRFIE £ R

and prepayments BARE 28,293 23,919 148 38

122,979 90,720 148 38

The ageing analysis of frade receivables (net of REER > BRERERR(IBRRERE) 2
provision for doubtful debts) at the reporting date is as REOMAT :

follows:
The Group
58

2010 2009

—Z-2% —EENE

HKS$’'000 HK$'000

TET FEx

0 - 30 days LPR=1H 50,222 17,393

31 - 60 days =+—HZA~TH 13,114 13,070

61 — 90 days AT—ZATH 7,797 9,811

Over 90 days BBATA 23,553 26,527

94,686 66,801

The maijority of the Group's sales are with credit terms FEBEZHEGERABHAHI0EI0

of 30 to 90 days. In some cases, customers may be B HPBOEFNEEHLERZ20

granted an extended credit period of up to 120 days. B BHOBEALTHERUEAMRIHS
Certain balances over 90 days are on letter of credit or RREBENET o

document against payment.




20.Trade and other receivables (cont'd)

The movement in the provision for impairment of frade
receivables is as follows :

Balance at 1 April RMUBE—HB&E

Provision for impairment loss charged 3 A 8% R TR ERE

to profit or loss
Impairment loss reversed

BB & 1B ] 5

Balance at 31 March RZA=1+—B&E
At each reporting date, the Group reviews receivables
for evidence of impairment on both an individual
and collective basis. As at 31 March 2010, the Group
has determined trade receivables of HK$1,223,000
as individually impaired (2009: HK$1,014,000). Based
on this assessment, impairment loss of HK$209,000
has been recognised (2009: HK$118,000). The
impaired frade receivables are due from customers
experiencing financial difficulties that were in default
or delinquency of payments.

The ageing analysis of frade receivables that are not
impaired is as follows :

RE R ARBIE
BHE1-30H
BHE31-608
BHE61-908
BHEBIIA

Neither past due nor impaired
1 — 30 days past due

31 - 60 days past due

61 — 90 days past due

Over 921 days past due

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers that have a
good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are expected to be fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

20. FE UL BR 7x & E b JE WL FRTE (&)
ERNEURZEEREZIOT

2010 2009
—E—-2F —EE2hE
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FHET
1,014 899

209 118

- (3)

1,223 1,014

REBER  AKEUENRZEEFR N
REURANAEERY -R=-2 -
ZEZA=1T—-R  FEERIEBKEK
RHF 21,223 0008 (=2 RF :
1,014,000/ t) EERE » Flt - RF
EREHNEFHBRRAERBHRNAE
R B EREER209,0008T(=FER
F:118,000% ) °

BREBREZESREURERZRER DM
mT

The Group
F£ME

2010 2009
et 2ok 25 —EThF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAER
71,133 40,274
4,548 5,448
1,384 4,406
660 4,278
16,961 12,395

94,686 66,801

EARERFEHREZERUKERES
TEAEEBRFENCHEZEF - R
BBELR ARERZBRUNKEZRE
EEZVEEAZY  BHEETZEHW
B HEEEBREREAREAEN
RERE AEBYERZSEHREE
EREEEEN I
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“ . L .
= 21.Derivative financial instruments 2.7/ T A
‘E The Group
;% F5E
. 2010 2009
2 —E-25 —EENF
£ HK$'000 HK$'000
‘r_§ TER THET
< Forward currency contract BRHERERE - 322
’ This forward currency contract did not meet the R EMERFAFEH ST EE
criteria for hedge accounting. The change in the fair Eo WHHPERTETANLAFEE
value of this non-hedging currency derivative of loss 2B EAEEI22,008BT(=ZEFH
of HK$322,000 (2009: HK$676,000) was charged to the F 6760008 L) EHEAFERER
profit or loss during the year. Moo
The fair value of forward currency contract is REHEBARAZAFEUMRERERZ
calculated by reference to current forward exchange AEZEREE o
rates for contracts with similar maturity profiles.
22.Trade and other payables 22. BTRA R EMENFRIE
The Group Company
F5ME b 3/
2010 2009 2010 2009

“E-B% -—TINF —E—-BF —EINF
HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 ~ HK$'000
FRE FHR FHT FHI

Trade payables FE {3 BR 7K 25,981 16,641 - -
Accrued charges and H A RIE
other payables 12,961 13,938 74 45
38,942 30,579 74 45
Included in the tfrade and other payables of the Group BRAEESERREMEMRERRARZE
are trade payables with the following ageing analysis : HERMERITWT ¢
The Group
3%E
2010 2009
—E-Z5 —EENE
HKS'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
0 - 30 days DPR=1H 23,418 12,663
31 - 60 days =+—-HZAT+H 461 1,848
61 — 90 days AT—ZA+H 128 920
Over 90 days BBRATH 1,974 1,210

25,981 16,641




T-TFFH

23.Interest-bearing borrowings 23.5EBES !
The Group g
%M 5
2010 2009 o
—Z-%5 “ETNE E
HKS'000 HK$'000 g
FTERT FER
Bill payables and trust receipt loans, B ZERELWEER - EIKA
unsecured 39,603 26,697
Other bank loans, unsecured HiBIERZRITERK 6,457 2,037
Other bank loans, secured HttEEA 2 RITER 14,798 16,056
Obligation under finance leases MERERY 7 62
60,865 44,852
Current portion BV HA 25 13 47,340 30,032
Non-current portion FEENER R 19 13,525 14,820
60,865 44,852
All bills payables and trust receipt loans are wholly FERREBREIEVBEEREAR—F
repayable within one year. AEHEE -
The bills payables and trust receipt loans are EREEREIVEERNEEER 2
denominated in functional currencies of the relevant DHEEBZ2ERFENER2.07%  Hit
group entities and carry at effective interest rate at RITERFNEFHAREENRH 2%
2.07% p.a. Other bank loans bear interest at prime rate EEFEMO.6HEE o
minus 2% p.a. or HIBOR plus 0.6% p.q..
At 31 March 2010, the interest-bearing borrowings of BE-_Z-ZF=ZR=+-HAKEZA
the Group were repayable as follows : BECEEEENT :
The Group
r 3 |
2010 2009
—ZT-Z5 b 5183
HKS$'000 HK$’'000
TERT FTART
Within one year —FRx 47,340 30,032
In the second year E-ER 1,281 1,264
In the third to fifth years inclusive E=FEZFERIF(EHEEWMEF) 3,909 3,851
After the fifth year EELE 8,335 9,705
60,865 44,852
Less: Portion due within one year R ER—FREEZ
under current liabilities nEEE (47,340) (30,032)
Portion due over one year under R—EREEBEZERDERE

non-current liabilities 13,525 14,820
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% 23.Interest-bearing borrowings (cont'd) 2. 5EBE @)

15 Obligations under finance leases: MEHERS

b Present value of

3 Minimum lease minimum lease

E payments payments

2 BERRR BEERRZAE

s 2010 2009 2010 2009
S ZE-BF —TTHhF ZB-BFE —ETThF

HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FExT TER FET THEx

Amount payable: 2% :
Within one year —FR 8 62 7 54
In the second to fifth E_FEZERE
years inclusive (BREEME) - 9 - 8
8 71 7 62
Future finance charges ARBEEF (1) (?) - -
Present value of HEBKRE
lease obligations 7 62 7 62
24 .Deferred taxation 24 IR FE R 1E
The major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised FEERAEEREFRICEEEL
by the Group and movements thereon during the HESEREERHEZHNT :
current and prior year are as follows:
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES EERESRE
Accumulated tax Revaluation of
depreciation properties Total
REREHRE MEER &t
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

“E-%F "TThEF ZB-BF ZTITNE Z8-BF "TINF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HKS'000  HK$'000
TET TR TET TRR TET TR

Atbeginning of the year — E ¥ & & - 51 3,853 3,634 3,853 3,685
Charged to equity 18 % - - 907 219 907 219
Credited fo profitorloss st AB#H - (51) - - - (1)

At 31 March R=RA=+-H = = 4,760 3,853 4,760 3,853




24.Deferred taxation (cont'd)
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

24 IR TE (&)
FIERIBEE

Tax losses Others Total
BEER Rt At
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
—2-%F _TThG ZB-BF "ZTTHF Z8-%F —EINE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
FTERT TAR TET TER FiET TER
At beginning of the year  F & & - 1,627 1,626 1,627 1,626
(Credited) charged to (Mma)/ A
profit or loss B kT - (57) I (57) I
At 31 March R=ZB=+—H = 1,570 1,627 1,570 1,627

As at 31 March 2010, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax
losses of HK$3,455,000 (2009: HK$4,151,000) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the
losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant
tax jurisdiction and enfity. The tax losses have no expiry
date under current tax legislation.

As at 31 March 2010, the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with undistributed
earnings of subsidiaries, for which deferred tax liabilities
have not been recognised, is assessed to be immaterial
(2009: Nil). No deferred tax liabilities have been
recognised in respect of these differences because
the Group is in a position fo control the dividend
policies of these subsidiaries and it is probable that such
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

R-ZBE-—ZTE=ZA=+—-0 K&EE]
ARV BRHBHEFEB2EBELRE
BEN3 4550008 T (ZBEZHF :
4,151,000 ) DR K REBEH K A
FRENREERTAEEEY ARYEPZ
ZHEENERFER - BEBEREHBK
Bl ZERBBEBEIRIMSA -

R-—ZEZ—ZF=RB=+-H BEX
THENNER=R(EEHERER
BRAINESBIFER(ZZENF !
) o pH AN 5 B B8 4 42 I B B 2 R IR
BEE MazRATHEAOERTE
wWER > FHEEERELRBRER

25.Share capital 25 8% A&
2010 2009
—Z-%% “ETNEF
Number of Number of
shares HK$'000 shares HK$'000

BH&E TER RHEHE TER
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares at HK$0.1 each EREE0IBIZEER
At 1 April and 31 March REA-BR=B=+-H 1,000,000,000 100,000 1,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EERIRBE
Ordinary share at HK$0.1 each BEREE BT ZERR
At T April REA-H 231,000,000 23,100 210,000,000 21,000
Bonus issue of share (note) AL - - 21,000,000 2,100
At 31 March R=R=+—-H 231,000,000 23,100 231,000,000 23,100
Note: Pursuant to the annual general meeting held on 8 September Mz REARXAR=ZZENFAANAESTZ

2008, bonus issue of shares on the basis of one share for every
ten shares held was approved. 21,000,000 bonus shares were
issued under the bonus issue and the amount HK$2,100,000
was capitalised from the Company’s share premium
account.

The bonus shares were credited as fully paid and rank pari
passu with the then existing shares in all respects.

BRRBFAE  ERHERESHETRRH
AE-—BRAMNRGD 2 EEBTARKRYD
I 5 It % 47 21,000,000 BRA AR B -
2;?0,000%%8@$@EH&1%7?&1§EE%§%

BRAANRMEARIMEAR WEERK
RERNDERTEYEZARSES -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

26.Reserves

THE GROUP

Details of the movements on the Group'’s reserves are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 44. The nature and purpose of the
reserve is as follows:

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations, certain subsidiaries of the Company
are required to appropriate certain % of their profits
affer tax to the respective statutory reserves. Subject
to certain restrictions as set out in the relevant PRC
regulations, this statutory reserve may be used to
reduce any losses incurred or for capitalisation as paid-
up capital of the PRC subsidiary.

THE COMPANY

At 31 March 2008 and 1 April 2008 R-ZZEENF=A=+-—-HK
R-ZEZENENA—H
Capitalisation on bonus issue BITAR
of shares
Profit for the year FEHEF
Dividends gy

At 31 March 2009 and 1 April 2009 R=ZZFEAE=ZA=+—-BxK
R-ZBEAFNA—H

Profit for the year FEREF
Dividends g

At 31 March 2010

R-Z2—Sf£=A=+—H

B % R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BE_T-TF-A=-T-HLFE

26. ik &

ZN ]

AREEAEEZHBREBERE442
GRERRERR RECHERARN
T

EEME

ROBRERAAE  RPBERIREE 2
MEBLARRMEERBEY  EAR
FEREENNEERIL - REER
R ZOEEMEB A AEEBZNE D
AEMERZER

AN/NE
Share Retained
premium earnings Total
B {7 & " FEEHN &t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr TR TET

93,078 3,845 96,923
(2,100) - (2,100)
. 736 736
(12,810) - (12,810)
78,168 4,581 82,749
. 237 237
(10,395) ~ (10,395
67,773 4818 72,591




27 .Business Combinations

During the year, the Group acquired 100% equity
interest of Shanghai Techpro Interior Decoration
Co., Ltd. On 29 January 2010, the acquisition was
completed based on the share fransfer agreement.
The acquired business contributed revenues of HK$41
million and profit after tax of HK$4 million to the Group
for the period from 29 January 2010 to 31 March 2010.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2009, the
Group's revenue would have been HK$447 million and
profit after tax would have been HK$40 million for the
year ended 31 March 2010. This pro forma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indicafion of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had
the acquisition been completed on 1 April 2009, nor is
it intended to be a projection of future results.

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition are
as follows:

27. (WS H

R AEERBLEERENKNGE
ROABZ100%BHE -R_F-—FF—
AZ+hB  ZWBUREEZE 2R
TR ZNBrEER_T-TF—8
“t+thBHE-E-ZF=RA=1+—H
BAREBS B % %41,000,000 BT R
4,000,000 BT Z2WARBREEHER
A e

HZBBR-FFTNFEHA—BET
AEBEEE-FT-ZTF=A=1+—-H
EZ2WARBRAERERNE DB A
447,000,000 % 7t K 40,000,000 &
T MBEERTIRESAME  BX
A-—EBRTHZUBR-ZZNFEA
—HERAREERMEcREREE
RE - DU EMERREEER -

FRAZUB2EEREREEIINMT !

Acquiree’s

carrying

Fair value amount

BWBAZ

OFE ®e

HK$'000 HK$’'000

TART THER

Cash and cash equivalents H4RHEZHE 2,804 2,804
Property, plant and equipment ME BEREE 89 89
Other receivables H At & W 5k 18 826 826
Trade and other payables EAERREMENTE (124) (124)
Provision for tax MIERE (17) (17)
Net assets acquired EEBATE 3,578 3,578
HK$’'000

FTAER

Purchase consideration settled in cash HREREZERE 3,425
Direct costs related to the acquisition W BE 2 B R A 153
Total consideration BRE 3,678
Cash and cash equivalents acquired WiEzRERAEE (2,804)
Cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiary  WEREBAZEL R EE 774
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% 28.Related party transactions .BHEALTRS
p In addition to the transactions/information disclosed BRRATEREEMIOREZRS
- elsewhere in these financial statements, during the ERM AEBHEEEALTEETU
f year, the Group had the following transactions with TG :
% related parties:
8 Related party relationship Nature of transaction 2010 2009
s BMEALRE g3 1.3 —B-8% C—TTNE
5 HKS$'000 HK$'000
o FHET THER
Key management personnel, Short-term employee benefits 8,710 6,655
including directors BEHEIREA
TEEEBAS(BREES) Post-employment benefits 72 62

BREEANFTAESRM
A company under common control Rental expenses paid to

by the directors of the Company Negoftiator Consultants
(note) Limited (*NCL”)
—ERARAZERERARNES (M) & X ffNegotiator Consultants 2,220 2,037
Limited ( “NCL" )
Note: NCL is a company in which Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, Mr. TSE Sun MIEE : WiEALE WHEEAERMERLER
Po, Tony and Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin have beneficial interests. NCLEYERRER - EARERTERALE
The rental expenses paid were in the normal course of BENCLEHZEENKREZFHS -
business at terms mutually agreed between the Group and
NCL.
29.0perating lease commitments 29 REHEERIE
As at 31 March 2010, the Group had future aggregate R-ZE-Z2F=ZA=+—-H  A5ER
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable BrOUfREztREFKELEREMRH
operating leases in respect of land and buildings are as AR HEBEHRENREBELOT :
follows:
THE GROUP rEHE
2010 2009
ot 2l 23 —EENE
HKS'000 HK$'000
FHET THERT
Within one year —FR 26,013 24,905
In the second fo fifth yearsinclusive S-FZFAFR(EREEWE) 19,391 13,480
45,404 38,385
As at 31 March 2010, the Company had no significant R-ZZE-ZFF=ZA=+—-H &XAF
operating lease commitments (2009: Nil). TEEALLEHERE(ZE2NE .

®) -




30.Contingent liabilities

31

THE GROUP

In August 2001, a subsidiary of the Company
(“the Subsidiary”) sued one of its customers
(“the Defendant”) for recovery of an amount of
approximately HK$5,333,000 in respect of goods
sold and delivered to the Defendant. In September
2001, the Defendant filed a counter-claim in a sum
of approximately HK$6,148,000 against the Subsidiary
for the alleged losses and damages as a result of the
alleged breach of the supply agreement entered into
between the Defendant and the Subsidiary. The case is
now in the stage where the parties’ expert reports are
to be exchanged and the directors of the Company,
on the basis of independent legal advice obtained,
consider the Subsidiary has a good arguable case
against the Defendant for the counter-claim and
accordingly no provision in respect of the debt due or
the amount of the counter-claim has been made in
the financial statements of the Group.

THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2010, the Company had executed
corporate guarantees given to secure general banking
facilities granted to the subsidiaries. Facilities utilised
by the subsidiaries amounted to HK$60,858,000 (2009:
HK$44,790,000) as at 31 March 2010.

.Financial risk- management objectives and

palicies

The Group's major financial instruments include
frade receivables, frade and other payables, cash
and short-term deposits, interest-bearing borrowings
and derivative financial instruments. Details of the
policies on how to mitigate the risks from these
financial instruments are set out below. The Group's
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.

E»..\TMD

30. WARERE

AEH

“EE-FNA ARAZ-ZMER
A(ZHBLAR ) ER—BFF([HW
) HEERXNTHREZERES
#15,333,000#87T - HER-TFT—F
NAPERBEREZMBART LM
BhEERELEZ2BARBEOZMNE
ARREEBETHN6,148,0008 T 2R
RoBFAREBAERBRERBERR &
RRAEEREMEBLERER  RA
ZHBARARKEZRARBAES -
AT ERRARAENEERAEH
fREAEHRE -

ZANYN|

R=—ZZ-ZF=ZA=+—-H ' £K207F
RETHEARRBARITREFD
AAER - R-FE-FF=A=+-
B - MEBAACERZETEES
560,858,000 T (=ZFFNF :
44,790,000 7T) °

BEREERNRBE

AREIELRIBGERLESR &
HEAREMECHE  REREDE
FRESHEE - AHENLHSRIA
BRMARRESANT - AEEEE
BRERAMERN LRAR  LHE
201 B 56
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31.Financial risk management objectives and  31. B #REMEEE KW RECK (&)
policies (cont’d)

BBERR A

7o
£

% CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS PEERMIEA
5 The Group
E *%0
8 2010 2009
° =B-BF —TINF
5 HK$'000 HK$'000
s TER THERT
Financial assets MERE
Loans and receivables ERKEWRFE
Trade receivables FE s BR X 94,686 66,801
Bank and cash balances RekHzE 51,918 39,110
Financial assets at fair value through % 2 FEHRER A IE R RS
profit or loss RECZHEEE
Derivative financial instruments fTeemI A - 322
146,604 106,233
Financial liabilities MBERR
Financial liabilities measured DBHERAEECHEERE
at amortised costs
Trade and other payables FE 49 B 3 e ELAth BB 1 7K 1B 38,942 30,579
Interest-bearing borrowings EEBE 60,865 44,852
99,807 75,431
INTEREST RATE RISK A 2= & b
As the Group has no significant interest-bearing HRASEELREEAEEREEE
assets, the Group's income and operating cash flows HASENRAREEESBYIRNT
are substantially independent of changes in market SANEEE  AEENFZREKREIES
interest rates. The Group's interest rate risk arises from RERBEEN: ENEBRHEEEKE
long-term interest-bearing borrowings such as bills £ - BEREBENXNAZTHINE &£
payable and finance lease arrangements. Interest- HHEBREREFNEREKR  FERER=E
bearing borrowings issued at variable rates expose the MAEBEEMNZ  SEEEHAFERNER
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Interest-bearing B o
borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk.
As at 31 March 2010, it is estimated that a general R-ZZFE-ZF=ZA=+—-H  thst&EM
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, EHMBHAERTBZERT  BAN=X
with all other variables held constant, would decrease/ IEHTEOEREESAEENZF
increase the Group's profit after tax and accumulated BRAEEZRFNREZABABDIEND
profits by approximately HK$304,000 (2009: HK$224,000). 304,0008 T (ZZZAF : 224,000%
The 50 basis point increase/decrease represents ) S0RHEMEFFTEREARKE
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible BEEIMEE T —FEREEMNERET

change in interest rates over the period unfil the next BEEREE o
annual reporting date.




31.Financial risk management objectives and

policies (cont’d)
FOREIGN CURRENCY- RISK

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with most
of the sales transactions settled in Hong Kong dollars.
However, foreign currencies are required to settle
the Group's purchases from overseas suppliers. The
Group enters intfo derivatives transactions, principally
forward currency contracts. The purpose is to manage
currency risks arising from the Group's operations.

As at 31 March 2010, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 10 per cent in Euro dollar rates,
with all other variables held constant, would not
decrease/increase the Group's profit after tax and
accumulated profits (2009: HK$32,200). The 10 per
cent increase/decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in foreign
currency rates over the period until the next annual
reporting date.

CREDIT RISK

The Group's credit risk is primarily attrioutable to bank
balances and cash, frade and other receivables. Bank
balances and cash are deposited with banks in which
these financial institutions normally have sound credit
rating and the Group considers the credit risk to be
insignificant.

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis with the result that the Group's exposure to bad
debts is not significant.

The general credit terms allowed range from 30 to 90
days. As at 31 March 2010, the Group does not hold
any collateral from customers and the Group has
a certain concentration of credit risk as 35% of the
total frade and other receivables was due from the
Group's largest customer and 39% from the five largest
customers of the Group as af 31 March 2010.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2010
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% 31.Financial risk management objectives and  31. BB EKREEE K BER (&)

= policies (cont’d)

" CREDIT RISK (cont'd) EERRK(E)

Jo

3 Hence, the maximum exposure to credit risk is Bt RESHBRART REFE
E represented by the carrying amounts of bank REARTESRRASEEY BFZR
8 balances and cash, trade and other receivables in HtBWARE REE AEELEH
3 the consolidated statement of financial position. The HEREENTEREERR - AKE
§ Group has no other financial assets which carrying VTEREEMERAEEARZEERR

s significant exposure to credit risk. The Group does not ZHMER o

provide any other guarantees which would expose the
Group fo credit risk.

LIQUIDITY RISK REELER

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance FEBEBRANARTES  RTME

between continuity of funding and flexibility through E REHE REELEHEM-
the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans, and finance
leases.
As at 31 March 2010 and 2009, the remaining RZE-ZERZZEEAF=R=1+—
contractual maturities of the Group's financial liabilities, B AEERBRABERERENKRT
based on undiscounted cash flows, are summarised BB BKEERENT ¢
below:
The Group
¥50E
Within In the
Carrying 1 year or In the third to After the
amount on demand second year fifth years fifth year
B REZF
REE —-FR FFEN EFLER AFHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET THET THET THET
As at 31 March 2010 R-2-%2%
=B=t-8H
Trade and other JE 3 BR 50 % LA B 3 50
payables 38,942 38,942 - - -
Interest-bearing EEfEE
borrowings 60,845 47,340 1,303 4,035 8,743
As at 31 March 2009 RZBENE
ZA=t-H
Trade and other AR R H A 53
payables 30,579 30,579 - - -
Interest-bearing BEEE

borrowings 44,852 30,032 1,290 4,015 10,333




31.Financial risk management objectives and

policies (cont’d)

3. BREBEEENREE (&)

LIQUIDITY RISK (cont’d) REBEERER (&)
Company
b S/
Within In the
Carrying 1 year or In the third to After fifth
amount ondemand second year fifth years year
RE=ZFE
BEE BRN—FR E_FR FLER AFHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TER TAR TER TER
Asat 31 March2010 RZ-Z—ZF£=HF=+-—H
Other payables HAREFFIE 74 74 = = .
Due to subsidiaries ~ BN MBARZHE 59,949 59,949 - - -
Asat 3l March 2009 RWZZEEAF=A=+—H
Other payables Hitn BB 45 45 - - -
Due to subsidiaries ~ EHBARZHE 50,273 50,273 - - -
Company
3|
Within In the
Financial guarantee Guaranteed 1year or In the third to Atter fifth
contracts amount ondemand second year fifth years year
B RSB RE=ZFE
MBREEH BERe&E —FR B_FER BHER AENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER THERT THERT THET
Asat31 March2010 R-ZZ-Z£=HF=+-—H
Maximum amount  BREEREE
guaranteed 60,858 60,858 - - -
Asat31 March2009  RZZZAE=A=1+-H
Maximum amount  BEEREHE
guaranteed 44,790 44,790 - - -
FAIR VALUE NG

All significant financial instruments are carried at

R-B-ZER-ZBZFNF=ZA=T-—

amounts not materially different from their fair values as B FESRTEREGENE  BF

TEFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

32.Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are:

— to safeguard the Group’s ability fo continue as
a going concern, so that is continued to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders;

— tfo support the Group's stability and growth; and

— fo provide capital for the purpose of strengthening
the Group's risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure
and shareholder return, taking into consideration the
future capital requirements of the Group and capital
efficiency, prevailing and projected profitability and
projected operating cash flows. The Group currently
has not adopted any formal dividend policy.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt
to equity ratio. This ratio is defined and calculated by
the Group as total interest-bearing borrowing to the

B A% R M

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BE_Z-ZF=A=+—HILFE

32.EXEH

rEBEBEACZEES !

- REASEEASELSE  Htms
BERRREHDRRABEMRAE A
BETREE

- XBFEEZRERER K

- RHELX BLAKEzRABRER

BED o
AEBEBERRINEREARRE
AREIZEBBCERARBRERRE
HRBEPZEZEAZAFEEAR
RERFR - AKBEHRBLERNEM
EXREBE -

FEEUEXREBERRERELR 2 &
BeohEEDUAXAEEREEERE
FRABZAENE -R-T-FF=A

equity, at 31 March 2010 was 26% compared to 23% at =t—H BHER2H(ZFZNF:
31 March 2009. 23%) °

Five Year Financial Summary
LEMBRE

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BE_ZT - TF=A=1—HIEFE

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—EZ-Z2F —EETNE ZEENFE ZEZTtHE —ZEERE
HKS’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FART TET TET FTiERT
Results E ¥ |
Profit attributable PR 3R FE L % F
to shareholders 41,047 25,006 37,813 25,779 11,985
Assets and liabilities ? ERAR
Total assets BEE 343,765 281,516 298,502 233,154 196,417
Total liabilities Py (108,563)  (82,785) (115,153)  (74,827)  (53,654)
Shareholders’ funds REES 235,202 198,731 183,349 158,327 142,763
The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of BEZE_Z-ZTHE=ZPF=+-HLEEFER

the five years ended 31 March 2010 have been prepared ZEE EE&EED&@%E@W%% 0

on a consolidated basis.
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